                                                                         1

       1                             BEFORE THE

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

       2

                                             DOCKET NO. 100104-WU

       3       In the Matter of:

       4       APPLICATION FOR INCREASE IN WATER

               RATES IN FRANKLIN COUNTY BY WATER

       5       MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

               __________________________________/

       6

       7                               VOLUME 1

       8                         Pages 1 through 147

       9              ELECTRONIC VERSIONS OF THIS TRANSCRIPT ARE

                         A CONVENIENCE COPY ONLY AND ARE NOT

      10               THE OFFICIAL TRANSCRIPT OF THE HEARING,

                    THE .PDF VERSION INCLUDES PREFILED TESTIMONY.

      11

      12       PROCEEDINGS:        HEARING

      13       COMMISSIONERS

               PARTICIPATING:      COMMISSIONER LISA POLAK EDGAR

      14                 COMMISSIONER NATHAN A. SKOP

                         COMMISSIONER ART GRAHAM

      15

               DATE:     Tuesday, October 5, 2010

      16

               TIME:     Commenced at 11:14 a.m.

      17                 Concluded at 3:22 p.m.

      18       PLACE:    St. George Island Volunteer Fire

                         Department

      19                 324 East Pine Avenue

                         St. George Island, Florida

      20

               REPORTED BY:        LINDA BOLES, RPR, CRR

      21                 Official FPSC Reporter

                         (850) 413-6734

      22

      23

      24

      25

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                         2

       1       APPEARANCES:

       2                JOSEPH A. McGLOTHLIN, and J. R. KELLY, PUBLIC

       3       COUNSEL, Office of Public Counsel, c/o The Florida

       4       Legislature, 111 W. Madison Street, Room 812,

       5       Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1400, appearing on behalf of

       6       the Citizens of the State of Florida.

       7                LISA C. SCOLES, ESQUIRE, Radey Thomas Yon &

       8       Clark, Post Office Box 10967, Tallahassee, Florida

       9       32302, appearing on behalf of Water Management Services,

      10       Inc.

      11                RALPH JAEGER, ESQUIRE, and ERIC SAYLER,

      12       ESQUIRE, FPSC General Counsel's Office, 2540 Shumard Oak

      13       Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, appearing on

      14       behalf of the Florida Public Service Commission Staff.

      15                CURT KISER, GENERAL COUNSEL, and MARY ANNE

      16       HELTON, DEPUTY GENERAL COUNSEL, FPSC General Counsel's

      17       Office, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida

      18       32399-0850, appearing as advisors to the Commission.

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                         3

       1                              I N D E X

       2                              WITNESSES

       3

               NAME:                            PAGE NO.:

       4

       5       FRANK SEIDMAN

       6       Direct Examination by Ms. Scoles              18

               Prefiled Direct Testimony Inserted            21

       7       Cross Examination by Mr. McGlothlin           34

               Cross Examination by Mr. Jaeger               55

       8       Redirect Examination by Ms. Scoles            65

       9       GENE D. BROWN

      10       Direct Examination by Ms. Scoles              68

               Prefiled Direct Testimony Inserted            75

      11       Cross Examination by Mr. McGlothlin           94

               Cross Examination by Mr. Sayler              123

      12       Redirect Examination by Ms. Scoles           136

      13

      14

      15

      16

      17

      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                         4

       1                              EXHIBITS

       2       NUMBER:                                 ID.  ADMTD.

       3       1    Comprehensive Exhibit List              15      15

       4       2    FS-1                                    15      15

       5       3    FS-2                                    15      15

       6       4    FS-3                                    15      15

       7       5    AW-1                                    15      15

       8       6    AW-2                                    15      15

       9       7    AW-3                                    15      15

      10       8    AW-4                                    15      15

      11       9    AW-5                                    15      15

      12       10   Ramas Appendix I                        15      15

      13       11   DR-1                                    15      15

      14       12   DR-2                                    15      15

      15       13   DR-3                                    15      15

      16       14   DR-4                                    15      15

      17       15   DR-5                                    15      15

      18       16   DR-6                                    15      15

      19       17   DR-7                                    15      15

      20       18   DR-8                                    15      15

      21       19   DR-9                                    15      15

      22       20   DR-10                                   15      15

      23       21   DR-11                                   15      15

      24       22   DR-12                                   15      15

      25       23   DR-13                                   15      15

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                         5

       1                              EXHIBITS

       2       NUMBER:                                 ID.  ADMTD.

       3       24   DR-14                                   15      15

       4       25   Staff's Exhibit 25                      15      15

       5       26   Staff's Exhibit 26                      15      15

       6       27   Staff's Exhibit 27                      15      15

       7       28   Staff's Exhibit 28                      15      15

       8       29   Staff's Exhibit 29                      15      15

       9       30   Staff's Exhibit 30                      15      15

      10       31   Staff's Exhibit 31                      15      15

      11       32   Staff's Exhibit 32                      15      15

      12       33   Staff's Exhibit 33                      15      15

      13       34   Staff's Exhibit 34                      15      15

      14       35   Staff's Exhibit 35                      15      15

      15       36   Staff's Exhibit 36                      15      15

      16       37   Staff's Exhibit 37                      15      15

      17       38   Staff's Exhibit 38                      15      15

      18       39   Staff's Exhibit 39                      15      15

      19       40   CM-1                                    15      15

      20       41   DMD-1                                   15      15

      21       42   FS-4                                    15      15

      22       43   MS-1                                    15      15

      23       44   MS-2                                    15      15

      24       45   MS-3                                    15      15

      25       46   BSW-1                                   15      15

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                         6

       1                              EXHIBITS

       2       NUMBER:                            ID.  ADMTD.

       3       47   BSW-2                                   15      15

       4       48   BSW-3                                   15      15

       5       49   BSW-4                                   15      15

       6       50   GB-1                                    15      15

       7       51   GB-2                                    15      15

       8       52   GB-3                                    15      15

       9       53   GB-4                                    15      15

      10       54   GB-5                                    15      15

      11       55   GB-6                                    15      15

      12       56   GB-7                                    15      15

      13       57   GB-8                                    15      15

      14       58   GB-9                                    15      15

      15       59   GB-10                                   15      15

      16       60   GB-11                                   15      15

      17       61   GB-12                                   15      15

      18       62   GB-13                                   15      15

      19       63   GB-14                                   15      15

      20       64   GB-15                                   15      15

      21       65   GB-16                                   15      15

      22       66                                           12

      23       67                                           12

      24       68   OPC's Response to Staff's 1st           12      15

                    Interrogatories 1 through 8

      25

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                         7

       1                              EXHIBITS

       2       NUMBER:                            ID.  ADMTD.

       3       69   Dobiac Depo and Exhibits                13      15

       4       70   WMSI's Supplemental Response to         13      15

                    OPC's 2d Interrogatory 67

       5

               71   Updated Scheduled B-10                  33

       6

               72   Excerpt from Commission Rule            41      68

       7            25-30.580

       8       73   Excerpts from Orders PSC-96-1320        45      68

                    and PSC-94-1042

       9

               74   Excerpts from WMSI Annual Reports       98     145

      10

               75   WMSI Response to OPC's 1st Set of      108     145

      11            PODs, Number 3

      12       76   WMSI Current Water Tariff              111     145

      13       77   Addendum to Application for Water      114     145

                    Service

      14

               78   (Late-Filed) Commission Staff Letter   118

      15            to WMSI Regarding Inspection

      16       79   Excerpt from 2009 Annual Report        123     145

      17       80   (Late-Filed) Disallowed Investment     136

                    in Plant

      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                         8

       1                        P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  At this point we're

       3       going to go back on the record and convene the technical

       4       portion of the hearing.  And, Staff, if you could

       5       address the preliminary matters.

       6                 MR. JAEGER:  Yes, Commissioner.  There are

       7       quite a few stipulations.  I think the first thing we

       8       could do is go to the Prehearing Order and go to the

       9       back of it and get the stipulations there.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And do we want to

      11       address the outstanding motion to strike first?

      12                 MR. JAEGER:  That motion to strike was issued

      13       yesterday afternoon at about 3:45, and so that's no

      14       longer a pending matter.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And that, just for

      16       the record, the motion to strike was denied for the

      17       reasons set forth in the order, and copies of that have

      18       been provided to the Commission and the parties.  And,

      19       Mr. Jaeger, you may proceed.

      20                 MR. JAEGER:  Thanks.  Under Section X, page 29

      21       of the Prehearing Order, Proposed Stipulations, the

      22       first stipulation was the parties agreed that no used

      23       and useful adjustment for water plant facilities and

      24       storage is required.  And do you want me to go through

      25       all the stipulations and have the Commissioners agree to

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                         9

       1       that all at once or --

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  That would probably be the

       3       appropriate thing to do.

       4                 MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  The parties agree that the

       5       testimony of WMSI Witness Withers may be taken up out of

       6       sequence, but not before both of OPC's witnesses have

       7       testified, just trying to accommodate her schedule.

       8                 The parties and Staff are agreed that the

       9       testimony and Exhibit DMD-1 of Staff Witness Dobiac, the

      10       auditor, may be inserted into the record, and that in

      11       lieu of cross her deposition and six deposition exhibits

      12       will be admitted as an exhibit.

      13                 The parties further agree that the testimony

      14       and Exhibit CM-1 of Staff Witness McKeown and the

      15       testimony of Staff Witness Chelette may be inserted into

      16       the record.

      17                 With these stipulations, the parties and Staff

      18       agree that all Staff witnesses may be excused from the

      19       hearing.

      20                 Finally, Issue 5, "Should any adjustments be

      21       made to offset plant improvements related to mains in

      22       the State Park as a result of WMSI's transfer of rental

      23       rights to the elevated tower?"  The stipulation is, "As

      24       a result of WMSI's transfer of rental rights to the

      25       elevated tower, plant in service and accumulated
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       1       depreciation should be reduced by $100,000 and $6,978

       2       respectively.  Additionally, test year depreciation

       3       expense should be reduced by $2,326."

       4                 Issue 7, "Should any adjustments be made to

       5       test year land?"  And the stipulation, "Land should be

       6       decreased by $3,400 to reflect the removal of appraisal

       7       and surveying costs associated with land that was sold."

       8                 Issue 11, "Should any adjustments be made to

       9       test year Advances for Construction?"  This is a partial

      10       stipulation.  "Advances for Construction should be

      11       decreased by $9,257 to reflect Commission approved

      12       adjustment from the Utility's last rate case."

      13                 Issue 12, "What is the appropriate working

      14       capital allowance?"  Again, a partial stipulation.

      15       "Working capital should be reduced by $112,034

      16       unamortized debt discount and issuing expense which is

      17       included in the Utility's long-term debt cost rate.

      18       Further, working capital should be reduced by $17,983 to

      19       remove fully amortized rate case expense from prior rate

      20       case."

      21                 Issue 14, "What is the appropriate amount of

      22       customer deposits to include in the capital structure?"

      23       Stipulation, "The appropriate amount of customer

      24       deposits to include in the capital structure is

      25       $100,499."
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       1                 Issue 24, "Should any adjustments be made to

       2       the requested level of Contract Labor Costs?"

       3       Stipulation, "$1,250 of additional contractual service

       4       costs should be removed for a total of $7,250 for Hank

       5       Garrett charges during 2009 that's on the general ledger

       6       as management fees."

       7                 And the last stipulation in the Prehearing

       8       Order is "Should the Utility be required to provide

       9       proof that it has adjusted its books for all Commission

      10       approved adjustments?"  Stipulation, "To ensure that the

      11       Utility adjusts its books in accordance with the

      12       Commission's decision, WMSI should provide proof within

      13       90 days of the final order issued in this docket that

      14       the adjustments for all the applicable NARUC USOA

      15       primary accounts have been made."

      16                 That's all the stipulations in the Prehearing

      17       Order.

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      19       Any other additional preliminary matters that we need to

      20       take up at this time?

      21                 MR. JAEGER:  Since the issuance of the

      22       Prehearing Order we do have quite a few other

      23       stipulations I can get to.

      24                 We've added several exhibits.  I think first

      25       we could go -- in the Comprehensive Exhibit List we have
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       1       Exhibits 1 through 65, and then we added 66 and 67.  And

       2       so we'd like to identify that as Exhibit 1 and have it

       3       admitted into the record.

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  With respect to 66

       5       and 67, we have identified those customer exhibits but

       6       we've not yet entered those in.  I would look to Public

       7       Counsel if they would like to do so at this time.

       8                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  We'd move 66 and 67 into the

       9       record.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Any objection?

      11                 MS. SCOLES:  No.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Hearing none,

      13       show 66 and 67 entered into the record.  And,

      14       Mr. Jaeger --

      15                (Exhibits 66 and 67 admitted into the record.)

      16                 MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  Now I'd like to go back to

      17       the stipulations.

      18                 Another exhibit we'd like to have identified

      19       at this time is OPC's Response to Staff's First

      20       Interrogatories 1 through 8.

      21                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And that'll be

      22       Exhibit 68.

      23                (Exhibit 68 marked for identification.)

      24                 MR. JAEGER:  And then we have Dobiac's

      25       deposition and six deposition exhibits.  We'd have, like
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       1       to have that as 69.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  That will be

       3       marked for identification as Exhibit 69.

       4                (Exhibit 69 marked for identification.)

       5                 MR. JAEGER:  And then we have WMI's -- I'm

       6       sorry -- WMSI's Supplemental Response to OPC Second

       7       Interrogatory Number 67.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  That will be marked

       9       for identification as Exhibit 70.

      10                (Exhibit 70 marked for identification.)

      11                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Mr. Jaeger, could you

      12       repeat what Exhibit 70 is titled or described as again

      13       for me?  Thank you.

      14                 MR. JAEGER:  That is WMSI's Supplemental

      15       Response to OPC's Second Interrogatory Number 67.

      16                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Mr. Jaeger, just

      18       slow this down so we can get the exhibits

      19       contemporaneously with entering them.

      20                 The first handout that you gave us is properly

      21       marked for identification as Exhibit 68.  That's the tan

      22       one that is the OPC's Answers to Staff's First Set of

      23       Interrogatories 1 through 8; is that correct?

      24                 MR. JAEGER:  That's correct.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  The second one that

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                        14

       1       you handed out with the purple cover sheet has been

       2       marked for identification as Exhibit 69, and that's the

       3       deposition of Debra Dobiac.

       4                 MR. JAEGER:  With her six deposition exhibits.

       5       That's correct, sir.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Thank you.

       7       And 70 will be passed out?

       8                 MR. SAYLER:  Yes.  I passed that out.  It's

       9       the --

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I did not get one.  Thank

      11       you.

      12                 MR. SAYLER:  Oh, okay.

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Thank you.

      14       And Exhibit 70 has been marked for identification as

      15       WMSI's Supplemental Response to OPC's Second Set of

      16       Interrogatories Number 67.

      17                 MR. JAEGER:  And then the last stipulation

      18       that I was just made aware of by the Office of Public

      19       Counsel, they said Issue 25 can be stipulated to.  And

      20       that's the Utility's -- they are -- they will adopt the

      21       Utility's position on Issue 25.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  All right.  Very

      23       well.  You mentioned that as Exhibit 1 you wanted to

      24       take up or Staff wanted to take up what's been marked

      25       for identification as hearing IDs 1 through 67.  Does
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       1       that now include 68, 69 and 70?

       2                 MR. JAEGER:  That can be so, yes, sir.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Any objection to

       4       that, Ms. Scoles?

       5                 MS. SCOLES:  No, Chairman.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  All right.  Hearing

       7       no objection, show that done.

       8                (Exhibits 1 through 65 marked for

       9       identification and admitted into the record.)

      10                (Exhibits 68 through 70 admitted into the

      11       record.)

      12                 MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  So, first of all, do we

      13       approve all the stipulations?  Is that --

      14                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Commissioner Skop, if, if

      15       appropriate, I'd move that we accept and adopt the

      16       proposed stipulations on pages 29 and 30 of the

      17       Prehearing Order, and additionally Issue 25 with the

      18       Utility's position.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Is there a

      20       second?

      21                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  Second.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  All in favor,

      23       signify by saying aye.

      24                (Unanimous affirmative vote.)

      25                 MR. JAEGER:  And I think you moved all
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       1       exhibits in, 1 through 70; is that correct?

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes.  1 through 70 is the

       3       current state.

       4                 MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  And with the excusal --

       5       I'd propose that we insert the Staff witnesses'

       6       testimony at the proper place in the Commission

       7       proceeding.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  We will do

       9       that at the appropriate time.

      10                 MR. JAEGER:  Okay.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  And then my --

      12                 MR. JAEGER:  Oh --

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Go ahead.

      14                 MR. JAEGER:  OPC did make me aware of two

      15       changes, two changes to our Prehearing Order that she,

      16       that we did not apparently put in her changes.  Issue 17

      17       is the first one.

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  All right.

      19                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Page 12?

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Issue 17 on

      21       page 12.  Can you --

      22                 MR. JAEGER:  That's right.  Page 12.  And it

      23       should have been "The appropriate overall rate of return

      24       for WMSI is 3.85 percent."

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Any objection to making
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       1       that correction?

       2                 MS. SCOLES:  No, Chairman.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

       4       Show it done.

       5                 MR. JAEGER:  And then Issue 42, instead of the

       6       position for miscellaneous service charges, that's

       7       Page 21, OPC wanted to just take no position.  Is that

       8       correct?

       9                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  That's correct.

      10                 MR. JAEGER:  And those are all the changes I'm

      11       aware of.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Any, any

      13       objection to the proposed change on Issue 42, page 21?

      14       All right.  Hearing none, show it done.

      15                 Mr. Jaeger, any additional matters?

      16                 MR. JAEGER:  None that I know of, sir.

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  It's my

      18       understanding that the parties have agreed to waive

      19       opening and we'll proceed with calling the first

      20       witness.  So, Ms. Scoles, you're recognized.

      21                 MS. SCOLES:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  With

      22       your permission, Water Management Services calls direct

      23       witness Frank Seidman.

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And actually before we get

      25       to that, let me swear all of the witnesses that are in
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       1       attendance so we can do that expediently.  All right.

       2       Please raise your right hand.

       3                 (Witnesses collectively sworn.)

       4                 Thank you.  You may be seated.

       5                 Ms. Scoles, you may proceed.

       6       Whereupon,

       7                            FRANK SEIDMAN

       8       was called as a witness on behalf of Water Management

       9       Services, Inc., and, having been duly sworn, testified

      10       as follows:

      11                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

      12       BY MS. SCOLES:

      13            Q.   Okay.  Mr. Seidman, you were just sworn in.  I

      14       would ask you to please state your name and business

      15       address for the record.

      16            A.   My name is Frank -- excuse me.  My name is

      17       Frank Seidman.  My address is 18444 Lost Lake Way,

      18       Jupiter, Florida.

      19            Q.   Mr. Seidman, who are you employed with?

      20            A.   Management and Regulatory Consultants, Inc.

      21            Q.   And what's your position with that firm?

      22            A.   I'm President.

      23            Q.   Mr. Seidman, did you prepare and cause to be

      24       filed direct testimony in this proceeding?

      25            A.   Yes, I did.
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       1            Q.   And do you have that prefiled direct testimony

       2       before you today?

       3            A.   Yes, I do.

       4            Q.   Do you have any corrections or revisions to

       5       your direct prefiled testimony?

       6            A.   No.

       7            Q.   If I were to ask you the questions that are

       8       contained in your direct testimony here this morning,

       9       would your answers be the same?

      10            A.   Yes.

      11                 MS. SCOLES:  Okay.  Mr. Chairman, I would ask

      12       that Mr. Seidman's prefiled direct testimony be inserted

      13       into the record as though read.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  The prefiled

      15       testimony of Mr. Seidman will be entered into the record

      16       as though read.

      17       BY MS. SCOLES:

      18            Q.   Mr. Seidman, did you have any exhibits to your

      19       prefiled direct testimony?

      20            A.   Yes, I do.

      21            Q.   And those were Exhibits FS-1 through 3; is

      22       that correct?

      23            A.   That's correct.  Yes.

      24            Q.   Do you have any corrections or revisions to

      25       those exhibits?
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       1            A.   No.

       2            Q.   Do you have any additional exhibits that you

       3       would like to present at this time?

       4            A.   Yes.  We prepared an updated rate case expense

       5       exhibit at the request of the Public Service Commission

       6       Staff, and I had that prepared under my direction.

       7                 MS. SCOLES:  Okay.  Chairman, we can admit

       8       that now or I can wait until later, if you prefer.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  We can take it up at the

      10       end of his testimony.

      11                 MS. SCOLES:  Okay.  Very well.

      12
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       1       BY MS. SCOLES:

       2            Q.   Mr. Seidman, have you prepared a summary of

       3       your prefilled direct testimony?

       4            A.   Yes, a very brief one.

       5            Q.   Okay.  Would you please provide the parties

       6       and the Commissioners with that summary at this time?

       7            A.   Yes.  Thank you.

       8                 Good morning, Commissioners.  My direct

       9       testimony presents the basis for the Utility's request

      10       to increase its rates and charges and to revise its

      11       service availability charges.  And my testimony also

      12       sponsors the minimum filing requirements, the MFRs.

      13                 The historical test year data in the MFRs was

      14       prepared directly from the books of the Utility.  The

      15       normalization or annualization adjustments and the

      16       proposed pro forma adjustments were provided by the

      17       management of the Utility.

      18                 To summarize our case, based on the unadjusted

      19       books for the test year, the Utility operated at a

      20       $28,242 loss, that was for test year 2009, which is

      21       equivalent to a negative 0.7 percent rate of return on

      22       rate base, and that rate base was $4,019,449.

      23                 We made two major types of adjustments to the

      24       historic test year.  The first was to normalize

      25       expenses, as I previously said.  There were several
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       1       expenses that were incurred by the Utility during the

       2       test year for only a few months, but these are ongoing

       3       expenses, will continue and are continuing on a regular

       4       basis.  And these normalization adjustments serve to

       5       annualize these expenses so that the rates could be

       6       properly set to recover them.

       7                 The second type of adjustment was to reflect

       8       capital improvement projects that the Utility intends to

       9       complete within two years of this rate case.  The MFRs

      10       also reflect the change in the Utility's cost of capital

      11       that would result from financing these capital

      12       improvements.  When all of these adjustments are

      13       considered, the Utility will require an increase in

      14       annual revenues of $641,629.  The basis for all of these

      15       adjustments is fully explained in the testimony of the

      16       Utility's president, Mr. Brown.

      17                 The Utility is also requesting a change in its

      18       rate structure.  The Utility has been experiencing a

      19       steady decline in annual revenues over the past several

      20       years due to a combination of overall economic

      21       conditions, a three-tiered rate structure and a shallow

      22       well policy that encourages customers to stop using

      23       water from the Utility.

      24                 The Utility is proposing that the rate

      25       structure be two-tiered and have a base facility charge
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       1       that recovers 75 percent of the revenue requirement.

       2       This change will be an incentive to stay on the system

       3       so that the customer base does not shrink, and that it

       4       will distribute the cost of fire protection, which is

       5       built into the rates and which is available to residents

       6       whether or not they are customers of the Utility, over a

       7       larger customer base.

       8                 The Utility is also requesting that its

       9       miscellaneous charges be increased to reflect current

      10       costs.  And, finally, the Utility is requesting an

      11       increase in its service availability charges to keep

      12       them within Commission guidelines.  That concludes my

      13       summary.

      14                 MS. SCOLES:  Mr. Chairman, the Utility would

      15       tender Mr. Seidman for cross-examination.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.

      17                 Mr. McGlothlin, you're recognized for

      18       cross-examination.

      19                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  First, I don't think we've

      20       seen the updated rate case expense exhibit.  Is that

      21       available?

      22                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  And has that been marked?

      23                 MS. SCOLES:  I'm sorry?

      24                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Has that been marked for

      25       identification?
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       1                 MS. SCOLES:  No, ma'am.  It was just completed

       2       late yesterday.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Do we need a number for

       4       that, Ms. Scoles, or is that part of a previous filed

       5       exhibit?

       6                 MS. SCOLES:  No, Chairman.  We will need a

       7       number.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  The next number

       9       will be marked for identification for Exhibit 71.  A

      10       short title?

      11                 MS. SCOLES:  It would be Updated Schedule

      12       B-10.

      13                 (Exhibit 71 marked for identification.)

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      15       You may proceed.

      16                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Commissioner, since we

      17       received this only now, I'd like to request an

      18       opportunity to ask this witness about it when he comes

      19       back on rebuttal, if we have any questions at that time.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Ms. Scoles, any objection

      21       to that?

      22                 MS. SCOLES:  No, Chairman.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      24                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  So does that need to be

      25       distributed, Commissioner, or not at this time?

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                        34

       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes.  We, yeah, we

       2       probably need to distribute it.  Exhibits don't seem to

       3       be flowing very well this morning.

       4                 (Pause.)

       5                 Okay.  Everyone has exhibits.

       6                 Mr. McGlothlin, you may proceed.

       7                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       8       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

       9            Q.   Hello, Mr. Seidman.

      10            A.   Good morning.

      11            Q.   I have several questions for you that relate

      12       to your direct testimony, and I expect we'll have more

      13       questions when you return to the stand.

      14                 For my first question, my first question

      15       relates to the minimum filing requirements that you

      16       prepared or were involved in preparing; is that correct?

      17            A.   Yes.

      18            Q.   Those have been marked as an exhibit.  I'm

      19       going to ask Tricia to distribute a brief excerpt from

      20       that.  I don't think there's any need to assign a number

      21       to it because it's already in the record.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Very well.

      23                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  This is for convenience only.

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.

      25       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:
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       1            Q.   If you have that before you, Mr. Seidman,

       2       we've provided a copy of Schedule A-5.  If you will turn

       3       to that.

       4            A.   Yes.

       5            Q.   And I'll refer you to the column 3 marked Test

       6       Year 12/31/09 and the total at the bottom.  And there

       7       you show that the total amount of water plant in service

       8       as of December 31st, 2009, was $8,993,851; correct?

       9            A.   Yes.

      10            Q.   And that's, that is the amount prior to any

      11       adjustments for non used and useful portions; correct?

      12            A.   That's correct.

      13            Q.   Would you agree then that this figure,

      14       $8,993,851 in plant and service would represent the

      15       original cost of those assets when they were placed in

      16       service?

      17            A.   Yes.

      18            Q.   And that is the original cost prior to any

      19       depreciation expense having been taken and --

      20            A.   That's correct.

      21            Q.   Now we've also provided MFR Schedule A-12, if

      22       you'll turn there.  And as a preliminary matter, we're

      23       going to be using the term contributions-in-aid-of-

      24       construction or CIAC.  Would you take a moment and

      25       describe for those in the room who don't deal with that
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       1       terminology every day what is meant by contributions-in-

       2       aid-of-construction?

       3            A.   Contributions-in-aid-of-construction are fees

       4       paid by usually a customer or developer prior to

       5       obtaining service.  And since they're contributed, they

       6       become a deduction from the amount of plant that the

       7       Utility is allowed to earn on since they're not Utility

       8       money.

       9            Q.   All right.  Now if you'll see on Schedule

      10       A-12, again under column 3, Test Year, the figure

      11       $3,239,514; correct?

      12            A.   Yes.

      13            Q.   Is that the total of contributions-in-aid-

      14       of-construction or CIAC that has been provided by

      15       customers toward the cost of the plant?

      16            A.   Yes.

      17            Q.   Now would you agree with me that if you begin

      18       with the original cost and subtract the amount of CIAC,

      19       the remainder should represent the amount that the, that

      20       the Utility has spent to provide the plant in service?

      21            A.   Basically, yes.

      22            Q.   And you can check my math, if you wish, but we

      23       identified $8,993,851 as the original cost and CIAC of

      24       $3,228,165.  Would you agree with me, subject to check,

      25       that that results in the amount of original cost that
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       1       was funded by the Utility of $5,765,686?

       2            A.   Yes, I'll agree with that.

       3            Q.   Now we've also provided you a copy of

       4       Schedule D-5, Interim.  If you'll turn to that.

       5            A.   Yes.

       6            Q.   Again referring to test year information, you

       7       show that the average principal balance of long-term

       8       debt outstanding was $7,768,865; correct?

       9            A.   Which page are you looking at?

      10            Q.   If we could have a short time-out.  We may

      11       have given him the wrong page.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Yes, Mr. McGlothlin.  Hold

      13       in place for a moment.  I see the D-5 final.  I don't

      14       see the interim.

      15                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  If we could have a moment, we

      16       have the interim to which we referred in the question.

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      18                 THE WITNESS:  Excuse me.  Can I ask my counsel

      19       for a copy of my Volume 1?  I don't seem to find it.

      20                 (Pause.)

      21                 Okay.  What are we looking at now?

      22                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  The Schedule D-5, Interim.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And, Mr. McGlothlin, do

      24       you have a copy of that we can hand out or do we need to

      25       refer to it in the volume in the testimony?
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       1                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  We don't have a number of

       2       copies.  It's Page 97 in the MFRs, if you have that with

       3       you.

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.

       5                 MR. DURBIN:  I have a copier here.  Would you

       6       like me to make copies?

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  If you'd like.  Okay.  I'm

       8       fine.

       9                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.

      10                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  We could also ask the witness

      11       if he would take this value subject to check, if that

      12       would expedite things.

      13                 (Pause.)

      14                 THE WITNESS:  The D-5 you're looking at, page

      15       97 is from the interim.

      16       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      17            Q.   Yes.  Correct.

      18            A.   Okay.

      19            Q.   And do you see a value there for the average

      20       principal balance of long-term debt of $7,768,865?

      21            A.   Yes.

      22            Q.   Bearing in mind that we've identified the

      23       amount of original costs funded by the Utility as about

      24       $5.7 million, would you agree that the amount of debt on

      25       the Utility's books exceeds the amount it invested in
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       1       Utility assets?

       2            A.   Yes.

       3            Q.   By approximately $2 million?

       4            A.   Yes.

       5            Q.   I also have several questions that relate to

       6       the subject of the service, service availability

       7       charges.  Would you take a moment and explain that term

       8       to those who don't deal with it every day?

       9            A.   Service availability charges?

      10            Q.   Yes.

      11            A.   Service availability charges are the method by

      12       which contributions-in-aid-of-construction are

      13       collected.  It's the determination of a charge that

      14       could be on the basis of the cost of plant that's put

      15       into place or the cost of mains that are put into place

      16       or the cost of meters that are put into place.  And

      17       based on those costs and the allocated amount per

      18       customer, we can end up making a service availability

      19       charge.  There are guidelines within the Commission

      20       rules.  It's just how much you can collect, there's a

      21       minimum and a maximum.  But in any case, that's what

      22       they are, they're a means of collecting contributions-

      23       in-aid-of-construction.

      24            Q.   I'll direct you to page 8 of your direct

      25       testimony.  Now the current charges imposed by the
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       1       Utility for service availability include a plant

       2       capacity charge, a main extension charge and a meter

       3       installation fee; correct?

       4            A.   Yes.

       5            Q.   And currently the plant capacity charge is

       6       $1,620; correct?  I'm sorry?

       7            A.   No.

       8            Q.   $845.

       9            A.   Yes.  That's correct.

      10            Q.   The main extension is, charge is $525?

      11            A.   Right.

      12            Q.   And the meter installation fee is $250?

      13            A.   That's correct.

      14            Q.   So the total of service availability charges

      15       currently is $1,620.

      16            A.   That's correct.  That's on line 20 of that

      17       page 8.

      18            Q.   And the Utility proposes that the charge be

      19       increased to $4,833.35; correct?

      20            A.   That's correct.

      21            Q.   And do I understand correctly that's based

      22       upon your proposal to set the service availability

      23       charges at 75 percent CIAC?

      24            A.   That's correct.  That's the maximum allowed by

      25       Commission rules.
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       1                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I want to distribute a copy

       2       of that rule for purposes of my next question.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Do we need to

       4       mark that or would you like it marked?

       5                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Yes, please.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  That'll be Exhibit

       7       Number 72.  And a short title.

       8                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Excerpt Commission Rule

       9       25-30.580.

      10                 (Exhibit 72 marked for identification.)

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Very well.  And you

      12       may proceed.

      13       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      14            Q.   In an earlier answer, Mr. Seidman, you

      15       referred to some guidelines, maximum and minimum.  Would

      16       you read for us the parentheticals there (1) and (2)

      17       that are set out in the rule?

      18            A.   You want me to read both paragraphs?

      19            Q.   Yes.  The maximum -- those are referring to

      20       the maximum and minimum amounts.

      21            A.   Yes.  "The maximum amount of

      22       contributions-in-aid-of-construction, net of

      23       amortization, should not exceed 75 percent of the total

      24       original cost, net of accumulated depreciation, of the

      25       Utility's plant -- of the Utility's facilities and plant
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       1       when the facilities and plant are at their design

       2       capacity."

       3                 And, two, "The minimum amount of

       4       contributions-in-aid-of-construction should not be less

       5       than the percentage of such facilities and plant that is

       6       represented by the water transmission and distribution

       7       and sewage collection systems."

       8            Q.   Would you agree with me that the rule speaks

       9       in terms of guidelines as opposed to hard and fast

      10       explicit setting of rates?

      11            A.   Yes, I would agree.

      12            Q.   And it is necessary for a utility to be at

      13       either the maximum or the minimum under the rule;

      14       correct?

      15            A.   In general practice it's pretty much

      16       necessary, I think, to be at the minimum, unless there's

      17       some extraordinary circumstances.  And the same thing

      18       with the maximum.  The Utility has been pretty flexible

      19       within that range.

      20            Q.   Now I have an example of such a situation for

      21       you to consider in the next question.  Now the rule

      22       says, "The minimum amount of CIAC should not be less

      23       than the percentage of such facilities and plant

      24       represented by water transmission and distribution."

      25       With that in mind, take the example of a water
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       1       transmission and distribution system that has no

       2       treatment plant and provides purchased water, if you

       3       have that example in your mind.  Isn't it correct that

       4       in this example if the service availability policy is

       5       designed to contribute at the minimum level, that would

       6       be 100 percent contributions-in-aid-of-construction?

       7            A.   That would be right.

       8                 THE COURT REPORTER:  Excuse me.  Can you speak

       9       a little bit more into your microphone, and would you

      10       repeat your question?

      11                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Yes.

      12                 THE COURT REPORTER:  I'm having trouble

      13       hearing this morning.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Mr.

      15       McGlothlin, if you could repeat your question.

      16                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I'm sure it's my fault.  I'll

      17       try to do better.

      18       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      19            Q.   The example is a water distribution company

      20       that has no treatment facility and provides purchased

      21       water instead.  Would you agree with me that under the

      22       minimum criterion in the rule, if taken literally, that

      23       would be 100 percent CIAC?

      24            A.   That would be correct.  Yes.

      25            Q.   So absent some variance from that, the Utility
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       1       would be in violation of the, of the minimum provision;

       2       correct?

       3            A.   Well, since it's a guideline, it's not to be

       4       in violation.

       5            Q.   Fair point.

       6            A.   But it's obviously a special case that the

       7       Commission would consider and say, no, that's too much,

       8       we'd like to see some investment.

       9            Q.   And if you know, am I, do I understand

      10       correctly that that's not just a hypothetical situation,

      11       there have been examples of such utilities that would

      12       fall either above or below the maximum and minimum

      13       levels in the rule?

      14            A.   My memory is not that good.  I don't know.

      15            Q.   All right.  Would you agree that in setting

      16       service availability charges for a particular utility,

      17       in the past the Commission has taken into account such

      18       things as the requested charges relative to those

      19       charged by other utilities in the, in the area?

      20            A.   No, I don't think so.

      21            Q.   What about whether a proposed service

      22       availability charge would have the effect of either

      23       enhancing or impeding growth in the area?

      24            A.   I haven't participated in any cases where that

      25       was an issue.
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       1                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  We want to distribute another

       2       exhibit, please.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Does that need

       4       to be marked for identification?

       5                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Yes, because it's an excerpt.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  It will be

       7       Exhibit 73.  And a short title.

       8                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Excerpt Order Number

       9       PSC-96-1320.

      10                 (Exhibit 73 marked for identification.)

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      12       You may proceed.

      13       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      14            Q.   Do you have that before you, Mr. Seidman?

      15            A.   Yes, I do.

      16            Q.   If you'll please turn to page 248 and read the

      17       second full paragraph.  Read to us, I mean.

      18            A.   Excuse me?

      19            Q.   Page 248, the second, second paragraph.

      20            A.   Oh, okay.  The paper was hiding my page

      21       numbers.

      22                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  I'm sorry, Commissioner.

      23       I apologize for interjecting.  What was the title on

      24       this exhibit?

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Excerpt from PSC orders on
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       1       service availability policy.

       2                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.  And page --

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  248.

       4                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  It's Page 248.

       5                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Okay.  I see.  It's a

       6       couple of different -- I'm sorry.  I was, I was in the

       7       wrong place.  Thank you.  I apologize.

       8                 MR. JAEGER:  Joe, there's actually two orders

       9       here all in one.

      10                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  You're correct.  The short

      11       title should perhaps refer to both orders.  The other is

      12       PSC-94-1042.

      13                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  It was my fault.  I was

      14       confused.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Please proceed.

      16       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      17            Q.   Based on that paragraph, would you agree that

      18       the Commission has considered the issue of competitive

      19       and market-based rates in setting service availability

      20       charges?

      21            A.   Yes.  It says that directly.

      22            Q.   And if you'll turn to the second order in that

      23       packet, please.  This is PSC-94-1042 in the Mid-County

      24       Services docket 921293.  And we've flagged a paragraph

      25       on page 5 of that order.
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       1            A.   This one I should remember since I was in it,

       2       but --

       3            Q.   Well, we'll give you a minute to refresh

       4       yourself.

       5            A.   Okay.  You're looking at page 5?

       6            Q.   Yes.

       7            A.   Okay.

       8            Q.   Would you agree with me that in this case the

       9       Commission found that a CIAC ratio of 56.97 percent was

      10       reasonable for that company?

      11            A.   That it was reasonable, yes.

      12            Q.   And would you agree also that according to

      13       this order, in, in that case the company witness had

      14       compared the requested CIAC charge to those charged in

      15       surrounding areas?

      16            A.   That it's compared to charges around the area?

      17            Q.   Surrounding areas.

      18            A.   I offhand don't see that.  Is there something

      19       you're, that --

      20            Q.   Page 5, first full paragraph, Mr. Seidman.

      21            A.   Well, I don't know how to answer this.  The

      22       developer's witness made that comparison.  It doesn't

      23       say that the Commission gave it any weight.  I mean,

      24       it's there, so I guess in the sense the Commission has

      25       had to make a, to take into consideration.
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       1                 I mean, the first order you showed me was

       2       pretty explicit there.  It said that the Commission made

       3       a statement that they were taking it into consideration.

       4       In this one I don't see that they said that.  I know

       5       what he testified to.  But it seems like since they went

       6       with what I was proposing, that they ignored it or

       7       whatever.

       8            Q.   Would you agree that Mr. Kramer was the

       9       utility's witness and not the developer's witness?

      10            A.   Mr. Kramer?

      11            Q.   Yes.

      12            A.   No.

      13            Q.   Do you have page 4 of that?

      14            A.   I'm sorry.  Okay.  I don't remember him, so

      15       let me see.  Utility Witness Kramer.  Okay.  I'm sorry.

      16       I don't recall that.  Yes.  So obviously it's true we

      17       did that.

      18            Q.   I gather from your earlier answers that in

      19       this case you did not make a comparison of the request

      20       in this case with service availability charges of

      21       utilities in surrounding areas?

      22            A.   Not really.  I mean, I, I was sort of aware of

      23       charges in other areas that were, especially in new, new

      24       areas, and I don't recall exactly what the numbers were.

      25       It seems like we -- I did a case for a development

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                        49

       1       that's down in, I think in Franklin County near Lanark

       2       Village, and those rates were pretty high, the service

       3       availability charges.

       4            Q.   Do you happen to recall what the CIAC ratio

       5       was?

       6            A.   I think we set it at 75 percent.

       7            Q.   Well, we've established that the total

       8       requested CIAC or service availability charge in this

       9       case is $4,800 and change; correct?

      10            A.   Right.

      11            Q.   In your experience, is that a relatively high

      12       service availability charge compared to other utilities?

      13            A.   I don't know.  I mean, it's hard to make those

      14       type of comparisons.  This charge is based on the, first

      15       of all, the capital projects that were being proposed,

      16       being put in place, and it's a pretty good chunk of

      17       money.  And, you know, the only place to get it from is

      18       from new customers.  We can't redistribute this over

      19       customers that are already here.  So I don't think it's

      20       unfair to go ahead and use a rate that high at this

      21       particular point.

      22                 On the other hand, we also did a comparison,

      23       not a comparison, but a calculation of what the charge

      24       would be if we didn't put in the projects, you know, and

      25       it's a lower number than that.  That would be based on

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                        50

       1       just, you know, the same input except no capital

       2       projects, and that would be about $2,300 instead of 48.

       3                 So it's really hard to, you know, to make a

       4       direct comparison.  We're talking about bringing into

       5       effect the, you know, the addition of quite a, quite a

       6       bit of capital.

       7                 You know, on top of that, you know, we just

       8       had $6 million put in for the bridge which has never

       9       been picked up through any CIAC except existing.

      10            Q.   In your earlier answer you indicated what the

      11       lower amount would be excluding those pro forma

      12       adjustments.  Would that value still fall within the

      13       range between the minimum and the maximum?

      14            A.   That $2,300 would be at 75 percent under those

      15       conditions, yeah, without the, without the pro forma

      16       additions.

      17                 I mean, it's awfully hard to, to go ahead and

      18       make judgments on these because you're trying to

      19       balance, you know, what new people coming on are paying

      20       under a current market and future market with what would

      21       be passed on to everybody through increases in monthly

      22       rates.  And since this is, this is a big help to get

      23       monthly rates stabilized, you know, that's a judgment

      24       factor that we made for the Utility.

      25            Q.   Would you agree that the Commission sets
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       1       service availability charges on a plant capacity basis

       2       and not a total system basis?

       3            A.   Not a what?

       4            Q.   Not a total system basis.

       5            A.   No.  The, the guideline for minimum and

       6       maximum is based on total plant against total CIAC.

       7       There are portions of it, you know, you can break it

       8       down in various ways.  But the total fee is, is measured

       9       on the impact over all plant and service and all CIAC.

      10                 THE COURT REPORTER:  Are you saying not CIAC?

      11                 THE WITNESS:  All CIAC.

      12       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      13            Q.   I want to ask you a couple of questions to see

      14       if we understand the way you went about your calculation

      15       correctly -- whether we understand correctly, I mean.

      16                 As we understand it, you removed the current

      17       meter installation and main extension charge and then

      18       calculated that value that would correspond to a

      19       75 percent CIAC value; correct?

      20            A.   It's a complicated formula developed by Staff

      21       that takes into consideration the, the amount of

      22       depreciation that's accumulated already, the amount of

      23       depreciation that will continue to accumulate until you

      24       get to what we might call a build out point, the amount

      25       of CIAC that's already in place, the amount of
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       1       amortization of CIAC that's going to continue, and make

       2       the, the determination based on the ratio out in the

       3       future, you know.

       4            Q.   Did you first establish the objective of

       5       setting it at the 75 percent ratio and then go about the

       6       calculation to derive the value that would correspond to

       7       75 percent?

       8            A.   No.  The formula set up by Staff automatically

       9       calculates a 75 percent.  There is a place in the

      10       formula for you to choose something less.

      11                 But the formula, when go through it all, it

      12       establishes what the minimum is, considering the minimum

      13       to be the cost of the transmission and distribution

      14       system.  It calculates what the fee would be for

      15       75 percent.  And then it, you know, there's a place in

      16       there to determine a fee in between, what percentage

      17       that would produce.

      18            Q.   So given the option of choosing 75 percent or

      19       the option of choosing something less than 75 percent,

      20       on behalf of the Utility you elected the 75 percent

      21       calculation; correct?

      22            A.   Yes, we did.

      23            Q.   Those are all of my questions.  Well, I'm not

      24       quite through.  Almost.

      25                 I believe in your summary and also in your
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       1       direct testimony at page 3, line 3, referring to the

       2       results of 2009 you indicated that there is an

       3       unadjusted books loss of $28,242?

       4            A.   Yes.

       5            Q.   And that $28,242, is that calculated based on

       6       the application of the Uniform System of Accounts

       7       prescribed by the Commission?

       8            A.   The what?  I'm sorry.

       9            Q.   Is that calculation made in conformity with

      10       the Uniform System of Accounts?

      11            A.   Yes.

      12            Q.   Now in 2009 the Utility initiated a new

      13       deferred compensation program, did it not?

      14            A.   Yes.

      15            Q.   And in conjunction with that, did the Utility

      16       show on its books as expenses some $80,000 representing

      17       $40,000 of deferred compensation for two, for each of

      18       two employees?

      19            A.   I believe that's correct.  Yes.

      20            Q.   Do you know whether the Utility actually paid

      21       that amount into a fund for the purpose?

      22            A.   Whether -- I'm sorry.

      23            Q.   Whether the Utility actually paid $80,000 into

      24       a fund to fund that account.

      25            A.   I would leave that to Mr. Brown to confirm.
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       1            Q.   Would you agree that with respect to the loss

       2       shown of $28,242, but for the $80,000 of deferred

       3       compensation, the Utility would have seen a positive net

       4       operating income for 2009?

       5            A.   Would you repeat that?

       6            Q.   Yes.  If one were to exclude, for purposes of

       7       my question, the $80,000 of expense on the books in the

       8       form of deferred compensation, would that have the

       9       effect of resulting in a positive net operating income

      10       for the year?

      11            A.   Yes.  If that's the only change made.  Yes.

      12            Q.   Now you also said after adjustments to both

      13       the operating expenses and rate base, the NOI for

      14       purposes of the MFRs was a negative $247,000; correct?

      15            A.   Yes.

      16            Q.   And that assumes that the pro forma

      17       adjustments for adding plant of about $2.2 million is

      18       included in rate base in this case; correct?

      19            A.   Yes.  Let me check one thing.

      20                 Yes.  That's correct.

      21            Q.   So as originally filed, the rates coming out

      22       of this docket would reflect the amount necessary to

      23       fund the construction of those pro forma adjustments.

      24            A.   That's correct.

      25            Q.   And at page 5, line 17, do you say that the
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       1       intent of the Utility is to complete the construction of

       2       those facilities within two years?

       3            A.   Yes, assuming there's some mechanism that

       4       comes out of this hearing to provide for funding.

       5                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  That concludes my

       6       questioning.

       7                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. McGlothlin.

       8                 Staff?

       9                 MR. JAEGER:  Yes, Commissioner Skop.

      10                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      11       BY MR. JAEGER:

      12            Q.   Mr. Seidman, is it correct that you are the

      13       witness sponsoring the billing determinant information

      14       contained in MFR Schedule E-2 that's hearing Exhibit 3,

      15       your FS-2?

      16            A.   Oh, yes.

      17            Q.   I'm going to have Paul Stallcup just pass out

      18       an excerpt.  It's already a part of the exhibits, so you

      19       don't need to identify it.  It's Schedule E2, page 1 and

      20       page 2.  Do you have that there?

      21            A.   Yes, I have it.

      22            Q.   Okay.  Please look at MFR Schedule E-2, page

      23       1 of 2.

      24            A.   Yes.

      25            Q.   And the second column in that schedule is
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       1       titled Test Year Billables/Gallons and also is

       2       identified as column 5.  Do you see that?

       3            A.   Yes.

       4            Q.   Would it be fair to say that the number of

       5       bills and gallons listed in this column represents the

       6       actual number of bills rendered and gallons sold during

       7       the 2009 test year?

       8            A.   Column 5?

       9            Q.   Column 5.

      10            A.   Column 5.  Yes, that's actual for test year.

      11            Q.   Okay.  Now take a look at the column titled

      12       Repressed Test Year Bills/Gallons.  That's column 11.

      13            A.   Uh-huh.

      14            Q.   And is it correct to say that these are the

      15       billing determinants that you used to calculate the

      16       Utility's proposed rates?

      17            A.   Yes.

      18            Q.   If we compare the number of residential bills

      19       and gallons in column 11 to the actual number of test

      20       years, residential bills and gallons listed in column 5,

      21       would it generally be true that these repressed bills

      22       and gallons are lower than the actual number of bills

      23       and gallons observed during the test year?

      24            A.   That's correct.

      25            Q.   And are these downward adjustments in actual
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       1       bills and gallons are intended to capture the effects of

       2       repression; is that correct?

       3            A.   Yes.  Reduction in customers and gallons is

       4       resulting from the downturn in the economy, the, you

       5       know, shallow well policies, the loss of gallon sales

       6       due to inverted rates.

       7            Q.   Go to Schedule E-2, page 2 of 2.  There's a

       8       black dot area on the middle left.  According to this

       9       schedule, you're recommending adjusting the number of

      10       customers downward by approximately 3 percent as a part

      11       of your proposed repression adjustment; is that correct?

      12            A.   I believe that's right.

      13            Q.   And could you explain why you think the number

      14       of customers will decline by 3 percent if the Utility's

      15       proposed rates are approved?

      16            A.   Why they will decline?

      17            Q.   The number of customers.  Yes.

      18            A.   Well, the number of customers have been

      19       declining anyway based on the history.  And this is

      20       taking into consideration that they will continue for

      21       the near future anyway, at least into the, you know,

      22       2010 and '11 when these rates would go into effect.

      23            Q.   So you're anticipating just a continuing

      24       decline as it did from 2006 to now?

      25            A.   Yes.  We don't see any turnaround yet.
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       1            Q.   And do you, do you have a reason or why you --

       2       what is the primary cause behind this historical

       3       decline?  I think you sort of touched on it.

       4            A.   Well, yes.  I mean, I can't attribute it to

       5       any one factor.  Obviously the recession we've gone

       6       through has had an impact.  But these numbers go back,

       7       for instance, the drop in customers beginning 2007,

       8       2008, you know, are really at the cusp of the recession.

       9                 We do know that during those years the

      10       gallonage rate had been converted to an inverted rate.

      11       That was done as part of a final order in Docket 00694,

      12       which was the supply main docket.  At that time the

      13       Staff went ahead and revised the rate structure so that

      14       there was an incline in rates charging significantly

      15       more, I think 25, 50 percent more in the second and

      16       third tiers.  And looking back at the information we

      17       had, there were some significant drops in consumption

      18       levels above the base level.

      19            Q.   Okay.

      20            A.   It's just the way things have been bearing

      21       out.  I'd say that's probably low, that 3 percent.

      22            Q.   You referenced the economy.  Do you know if

      23       any portion of this decline in the number of customers

      24       from 2006 to 2009 has been called by -- caused by

      25       foreclosures on the property?
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       1            A.   I don't know.  I know there have been

       2       foreclosures out here, but I didn't tie it specifically

       3       to anything.

       4            Q.   Did you perform any analyses or studies to

       5       determine what portion of the decline in number of

       6       customers --

       7            A.   No, I did not.  No, I did not.  I think in

       8       this particular case, first of all, as far as I'm

       9       concerned, when we do this repression analyses, you

      10       know, they're like any other analyses.  They're based on

      11       history and they tell the future, and whatever we say

      12       about the future is always wrong.

      13                 In this case I think what happened was we got

      14       some inverted rates.  They were based on repressed

      15       sales.  That's the way the staff designed them, that

      16       they assumed there would be a repression in sales of

      17       water.  There was.  I think the repression was greater

      18       than what the staff built into its repression

      19       percentage.

      20                 And just looking at the factors involved here

      21       without doing any in-depth analysis, I admit that, I

      22       didn't do any in-depth analysis, just looking at the

      23       trend we've had and the trend continuing into, into

      24       2010, that this is a pretty reasonable, if not

      25       conservative, estimation of what gallons the customers'
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       1       repression will be.

       2            Q.   Okay.  I'd like to change subjects just a

       3       little bit and ask you a hypothetical question.  If the

       4       Commission were to approve phased in rates for the

       5       Utility's pro forma plant and it takes two years for

       6       these additions to come online, given the recent

       7       volatility of the Utility's billing determinants, do you

       8       believe that it would be appropriate to update the

       9       billing determinants so the phased in rates can be based

      10       on the most recent billing data?

      11            A.   I'm having trouble hearing you.  I'm sorry.

      12            Q.   I'm saying if, if the, if you phased in the

      13       rates and you didn't do it for two years because that's

      14       when everything would come online, would you have to

      15       redo the billing determinants?

      16            A.   I don't know.  You know, like I say, the, the

      17       determination of how much to repress is an educated

      18       guess at best.  I know from past experience that when

      19       the Commission authorizes an inverted rate scheme and

      20       takes into consideration repression, the utilities are

      21       usually asked to provide monthly reports comparing, you

      22       know, the results to see what would happen so we would

      23       have a record of it.  That's about all I can tell you.

      24                 MR. JAEGER:  I'd like to pass out a, a

      25       demonstrative.  It's staff's 30 and it's already been
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       1       admitted and this is just for being helpful.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  So you don't,

       3       Mr. Jaeger, you don't need a number for that?

       4                 MR. JAEGER:  I don't need a number.  No.

       5       BY MR. JAEGER:

       6            Q.   Okay.  Staff's Exhibit 30 referred to WMSI's

       7       response to Staff's number 75 interrogatory.

       8            A.   Number 75?

       9            Q.   That's correct.

      10            A.   Okay.  I'm looking at it.

      11            Q.   And the amount needed to reconcile the rate

      12       base of the capital structure is $3,873,820 [sic], which

      13       is shown on the last line of that response; is that

      14       correct?

      15            A.   That's correct.

      16            Q.   Would you agree that the amount of

      17       $3,873,821 is primarily a function of the amounts

      18       associated with non-utility property investment in

      19       associated companies and negative equity?

      20            A.   Well, it's associated with a negative equity.

      21       I don't know that it's associated with any other

      22       investment in companies.  All I can tell you about that

      23       is that it's, I mean, it's obvious, there's nothing

      24       hidden here, that the Company has more debt than it does

      25       rate base.  You know, that's the purpose of the
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       1       reconciliation, so that nobody, none of the customers

       2       pay for that differential through their rates.  You

       3       know, part of it is going to be when you have losses

       4       every year, those losses continue to increase the

       5       negative equity.  The actual workings of it, I don't

       6       know what it's composed of, you know.

       7            Q.   Staff would like a late-filed exhibit that

       8       shows what many comprises the 3,873,821.  The Company's

       9       interrogatory response seems to distinguish between

      10       total assets and total capital and rate base, but it

      11       does not identify the specific amounts per the balance

      12       sheet.

      13            A.   Do you want that response from me or

      14       Mr. Brown, or doesn't it matter to you?

      15            Q.   It was my understanding that Exhibit 30, that

      16       75, did that not come from you?

      17            A.   Well, the number comes from me.  You're asking

      18       me for what, what makes it up.

      19            Q.   Yes.  We would like --

      20            A.   The number on, the number on that schedule is

      21       the difference between their total debt and rate base.

      22       You know, it's -- you subtract one from the other to get

      23       it.  I don't, you know, I never intended to identify

      24       anything with it.  I have never done that in the past in

      25       reconciliation.  So if you're asking me what the innards
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       1       are of that, I'm not the one that's going to be able to

       2       tell you.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Jaeger, is the

       4       late-filed that Staff's requesting properly addressed to

       5       Witness Seidman or better off to Mr. Brown?

       6                 MR. JAEGER:  We can try Mr. Brown, if he would

       7       be any better at that.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.  So

       9       we'll take that up at the appropriate time with Witness

      10       Brown.

      11                 MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  So we won't have that

      12       identified at this time?

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  If you wish to identify

      14       it, but do you want to wait until Witness Brown?

      15                 MR. JAEGER:  We'll wait until Witness Brown.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.  Do we -- this

      17       exhibit that is being handed out, is that also an

      18       excerpt, or do we need --

      19                 MR. JAEGER:  This is also -- this comes from

      20       hearing Exhibit 3 that Mr. Stallcup is passing out, and

      21       it was a part of Frank Seidman's 2.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  And you may

      23       proceed.

      24       BY MR. JAEGER:

      25            Q.   On Schedule A-19, page 1 of 2, look at the
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       1       column 2.  It says prior year ended 12/31/07.  Should

       2       that be 12/31/08?

       3            A.   Yes, it should.  That's a typo.

       4            Q.   And column 3, test year ended 12/31/08, should

       5       that be 12/31/09?

       6            A.   Yes.

       7            Q.   Okay.  Again, these are just excerpts from

       8       hearing Exhibit 3 and Schedules D-2 and D-5.

       9                 I think I have Schedule D-2, the final on the

      10       top.  And has the Company filed a schedule showing a

      11       reconciled rate base Schedule D-2 for the year 2009

      12       without the pro forma adjustments?

      13            A.   Say that again.

      14            Q.   Is the test year 12/31/09 shown there, is that

      15       with or without pro forma adjustments included?  I think

      16       it was the test year 12/31/09 column, it's $7,730,000

      17       and it has common equity.  Is that the actual test year?

      18            A.   I'm checking.  This Schedule D-2, final part

      19       1 at page 1 of 1, it shows as Page 60, that includes the

      20       pro forma adjustments.

      21            Q.   Can you provide a late-filed exhibit showing a

      22       reconciled 13-month average capital structure for 2009

      23       including the weighted average cost of capital without

      24       the pro forma?

      25            A.   It's included in the MFR as part of the
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       1       interim rate structure, excuse me, capital structure on

       2       page 96.  If you look at page 96, that's D-2, D-2,

       3       page 1, interim, and you'll see that the 13-month

       4       average is 6 million rather than 8 million.  And that's,

       5       that's because it excludes the pro forma adjustments.

       6            Q.   Okay.  And that's the same for Schedule D-5

       7       that you have for the year 2009 without any pro forma?

       8            A.   Right.

       9                 MR. JAEGER:  Okay.  That's all the questions I

      10       have, Commissioner.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you, Mr. Jaeger.

      12                 Any questions from the bench?  Hearing none,

      13       Ms. Scoles, you're recognized for redirect.

      14                 MS. SCOLES:  Okay.  I just have a very few

      15       questions, Chairman.

      16                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

      17       BY MS. SCOLES:

      18            Q.   Mr. Seidman, going back to the service

      19       availability charges that you discussed with

      20       Mr. McGlothlin, are there any benefits to existing

      21       customers for increased service availability charges?

      22            A.   Yes.  I think I discussed that a little with

      23       him that since CIAC is an offset to rate base, in the

      24       end it reduces what the rate base would have been upon

      25       which rates would be set.  The higher it is, the lower
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       1       the monthly rates are going to be for existing customers

       2       going forward into the future.  It's a tradeoff.

       3            Q.   Back to the pension.  If the $80,000

       4       adjustment for the pensions was rejected, would the

       5       income then be adequate for the Utility?

       6            A.   Define adequate.  I'd have to do the

       7       calculation and see what the return would be.

       8            Q.   And then back to the figure of the

       9       3,873,821 that Mr. Jaeger asked you about, does the

      10       source of that differential have any impact on the rates

      11       requested?

      12            A.   The 3 million?

      13            Q.   Right.

      14            A.   No.  That was -- what it does is it eliminates

      15       the interest expense associated with that $3 million

      16       that's not picked up through customers from their rates.

      17                 MS. SCOLES:  That's all I have, Chairman.

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.  If

      19       we could take up exhibits.  Ms. Scoles, you're

      20       recognized.

      21                 MS. SCOLES:  I would like to move Exhibit 71,

      22       the updated Schedule B-10.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Any objection?

      24                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Is that the rate case

      25       expense?
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       1                 MS. SCOLES:  Yes.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  I believe that's what's

       3       been marked for Exhibit 71.

       4                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I'd like to have a chance to

       5       cross on it before it's moved.

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

       7                 Ms. Scoles.

       8                 MS. SCOLES:  That's all I have, Chairman.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  What about Exhibits

      10       2, 3 and 4?

      11                 MS. SCOLES:  I'm sorry?

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  For -- well, I'm not sure

      13       that those have been formally admitted.  Mr. Jaeger got

      14       me a little mixed up on that one.

      15                 MR. JAEGER:  I got mixed up myself,

      16       Commissioner.  I'm sorry.  What I heard was we went just

      17       right through 1 through 70 and admitted all exhibits and

      18       that's what I heard.

      19                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  That's, that's what

      20       I thought I heard, but, in an abundance of caution, I

      21       want to be clear that the parties had no problem with

      22       that.

      23                 MS. SCOLES:  That's fine.  Thank you,

      24       Chairman.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.
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       1                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I move 72 and 73.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Any objection?

       3       All right.  Hearing none, show 72 and 73 entered.

       4                (Exhibits 72 and 73 admitted into the record.)

       5                And, Commissioners, at this point we're going

       6       to break for lunch, and we will resume at 1:45.

       7                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Okay.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.  We're

       9       temporarily on recess.

      10                (Recess taken.)

      11                 Okay.  We're going to go back on the record at

      12       this point.  And where we left off is Mr. Seidman,

      13       Seidman --

      14                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Seidman.

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Seidman.  Sorry.  Excuse

      16       me.  Mr. Seidman had finished his direct testimony and

      17       he was stepping down and will be back on rebuttal.

      18                 So, Ms. Scoles, please call your next witness.

      19                 MS. SCOLES:  Mr. Chairman, Water Management

      20       Services would call direct witness Gene D. Brown.

      21                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.  And,

      22       Mr. Brown, you've been previously sworn; correct?

      23                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, I have.  Yes, sir.

      24       Whereupon,

      25                            GENE D. BROWN
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       1       was called as a witness on behalf of Water Management

       2       Services, Inc., and, having been duly sworn, testified

       3       as follows:

       4                          DIRECT EXAMINATION

       5       BY MS. SCOLES:

       6            Q.   Okay.  Mr. Brown, would you state your name

       7       and business address for the record, please?

       8            A.   My name is Gene Brown.  My business address is

       9       250 John Knox Road, Tallahassee.

      10            Q.   And you're employed by Water Management

      11       Services.

      12            A.   Water Management Service.

      13            Q.   What is your position with the company?

      14            A.   I'm President and Chief Executive Officer.

      15            Q.   Did you prepare and cause to be filed direct

      16       prefiled testimony in this case?

      17            A.   Yes, I did.

      18            Q.   Do you have a copy of that prefiled testimony

      19       before you today?

      20            A.   Yes, I do.

      21            Q.   Do you have any corrections or revisions to

      22       that testimony?

      23            A.   No.

      24            Q.   And if I were to ask you the questions that

      25       are contained in that testimony, would your answers be
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       1       the same?

       2            A.   Yes, they would.

       3            Q.   Mr. Brown, you did not have any prefiled

       4       exhibits as part of your direct testimony; is that

       5       correct?

       6            A.   That's correct.

       7            Q.   Okay.  Have you prepared a summary of your

       8       prefiled direct testimony?

       9            A.   Yes.  Or you did.

      10                (Laughter.)

      11            Q.   I'm sorry.

      12            A.   You corrected mine.

      13            Q.   Mr. Brown, would you please provide the

      14       parties and the Commission with a summary of your

      15       testimony at this time?

      16            A.   Okay.  My name is Gene Brown, and I am

      17       President and CEO of Water Management Services, Inc.  My

      18       direct testimony explains some of the reasons that Water

      19       Management Services has found it necessary to file this

      20       request for a rate increase at this time.  The main

      21       underlying reason is that water sales and revenue have

      22       decreased, while expenses have continued to increase

      23       during the past several years.

      24                 Since this Commission last set the Utility's

      25       rates in early 2006, our water sales have decreased by
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       1       approximately 70 million gallons a year, or 32 percent,

       2       while our revenue has decreased by approximately

       3       $168,000 a year on an average basis through the test

       4       year 2009.  A great deal of this increase has been

       5       caused by the sudden legalization of shallow wells all

       6       over St. George Island.  These shallow wells have also

       7       contributed to an increase in the cost of running the

       8       utility company, especially in connection with our

       9       cross-connection control program.  And now even though a

      10       person can put, just put in a shallow well with no

      11       permit and use the Utility's water on a limited basis or

      12       not at all, as many do not, Water Management Services is

      13       still expected to provide high pressure, high volume

      14       water throughout the island for fire protection.

      15                 Despite these problems, we've continued to

      16       provide a very high level of service to our customers.

      17       The inspections by DEP in 2009 and again in 2010 found

      18       no significant deficiencies, and we're in substantial

      19       compliance with all the rules and regulations enforced

      20       by all of our regulators, including DEP, EPA, the Water

      21       Management District and this Commission.

      22                 We provide service 24 hours a day, seven days

      23       a week to over 1,800 service locations spread out over

      24       St. George Island, which is about 20 miles long and

      25       pretty, pretty spread out.  We have virtually no service
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       1       complaints, or at least I never hear about them.  And I

       2       ask and nobody complains.  You heard the testimony

       3       today.  I mean, we provide excellent, outstanding

       4       service.  I cannot remember the last time a service

       5       complaint was filed with the Commission.  I mean, I

       6       vaguely do, but it's been a while.

       7                 We're able to maintain this high level of

       8       service with great employees who are experienced and

       9       dedicated to outstanding customer service.  I would like

      10       to just take a moment -- I know Lisa introduced our two

      11       operators, but let me ask the rest of our people who are

      12       here today to stand.  There's Sandra Chase, Jessica

      13       Blankenship, T. J. Lamieux and Bobby Garrett.  That's

      14       the real reason we're able to provide such great

      15       service.  And you met Hank Garrett and Nita Molsbee.

      16       Stand again, Nita, who is our Chief Operator.  These are

      17       the people that are really responsible for everything we

      18       do right.

      19                 The -- my top three managers started, that's

      20       Hank, Nita and Sandy, started working with the company

      21       in the early to mid '80s.  Our average manager has been

      22       with us 22 years, and that is really the underlying

      23       reason why we're able to provide such great service.

      24                 Our other major problem with this company is

      25       that it's simply wearing out.  I started it in 1974;
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       1       that's 35 years ago.  We put -- at that time the island

       2       had been operating on shallow wells and septic tanks for

       3       about 20 years, and we started with about 15 customers

       4       and grew to about 1,900 and something.  Now we've got

       5       about 1,800.  But it's simply wearing out and many of

       6       the components have reached the end of their useful

       7       lives.

       8                 Because of that I asked our engineers, PBS&J,

       9       to make recommendations as to improvements that need to

      10       be made to keep us operating at a high level.  They

      11       recommended a new ground storage tank and other

      12       improvements which we deem to be necessary.  These

      13       improvements are explained more fully in our MFRs and in

      14       the extensive PBS&J engineering report filed in this

      15       case.

      16                 We're also asking for an increase in our

      17       service availability charges, our CIAC.  If we do not

      18       make this change at this time, the ratio of build out

      19       will be about 25 percent CIAC and about 75 investor

      20       contributed plant, which might seem good on the face of

      21       it, but what that will do is make the rates even higher.

      22       So we, we feel like it's been too low all these years.

      23       It's about at one-third, two-thirds now, but at build

      24       out, if we don't change, it'll be at 25/75.  We think it

      25       ought to be basically the reverse of that, which will
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       1       reduce the amount of money we have to borrow, the cost

       2       of which has to be passed along to our existing

       3       customers.

       4                 In my direct testimony I also explain the

       5       reasons for many of these necessary expenses included in

       6       our filing.  These reasons are more fully developed in

       7       my rebuttal testimony and in the testimony of our other

       8       witnesses, including Frank Seidman, Mike Scibelli and

       9       Barbara Withers.

      10                 That concludes my summary.

      11                 MS. SCOLES:  Mr. Chairman, I would move that

      12       Mr. Brown's direct testimony that was prefiled in this

      13       case be moved into the record.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.  The prefiled

      15       direct testimony of Witness Brown will be entered into

      16       the record as though read.

      17

      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25
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       1                 MS. SCOLES:  The Utility offers Mr. Brown for

       2       cross-examination.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

       4       Thank you.

       5                 Mr. McGlothlin, you're recognized.

       6                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       7       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

       8            Q.   Hello, Mr. Brown.

       9            A.   Hello.

      10            Q.   I have a limited number of questions for you

      11       that relate to your direct testimony.

      12            A.   Okay.

      13            Q.   And have some, have some additional questions

      14       when you come back for rebuttal.

      15            A.   Yes, sir.

      16            Q.   You said in your direct testimony and in your

      17       summary that you're employed by Water Management

      18       Services, Inc., as its President and Chief Executive

      19       Officer.  Your relationship with Water Management

      20       Services is not limited to your role as an officer

      21       though, is it?

      22            A.   I'm part owner.

      23            Q.   Yes.  I want to ask you a couple of questions

      24       that will serve to describe the overall ownership of, of

      25       Water Management Services.
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       1            A.   Okay.

       2            Q.   What is St. George Island Utility Company,

       3       Limited?

       4            A.   That is a limited partnership that was filed

       5       and formed in 1979 that purchased all of the water

       6       company operating assets from Leisure Properties,

       7       Limited, which was the original developer of the island.

       8       Another man and I named John Stocks bought the island

       9       basically in 1971 and formed Leisure Properties, and

      10       then we started the water company.  And I then formed

      11       St. George Island Utility Company, Limited, to take over

      12       and run the utilities.

      13            Q.   And does that entity own a portion of --

      14            A.   It owns 85 percent of the stock in Water

      15       Management Services, Inc.  Yes, sir.

      16            Q.   And what is your ownership interest in

      17       St. George Island Utility Company, Limited?

      18            A.   Oh, it's probably 90 -- it's about probably

      19       80 or 90 percent.  It gets a little bit complicated, but

      20       I have the controlling ownership through my family or me

      21       personally.

      22            Q.   Now what is Brown Management Group?

      23            A.   Brown Management Group is a Sub S personal

      24       corporation that I formed which owns a limited number of

      25       passive assets, and I own 100 percent personally of that
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       1       stock, and then I own 10 percent of the stock in Water

       2       Management Services.

       3            Q.   So is it fair to say that in addition to being

       4       the President, through your ownership interest in

       5       St. George Island Utility, Limited, and your ownership

       6       of Brown Management Group, you have a controlling

       7       ownership interest in the Utility as well?

       8            A.   That is correct.

       9            Q.   At page 9 of your testimony you state that

      10       since rates were last set in February 2006, the Utility

      11       has lost approximately $750,000.

      12            A.   Well, that is incorrect.  I -- it's over a

      13       million dollars.  I thought it -- I guessed at it.  I

      14       should have corrected that earlier.

      15                 We, since we filed that case, based on our

      16       federal tax returns we have lost about $1,100,000 in

      17       those six years, which I've documented in discovery here

      18       and updated it.

      19            Q.   Yes, sir.  And you anticipated my next

      20       question.  When you say you've, the Utility has losses

      21       of that magnitude, you are referring to your federal tax

      22       returns?

      23            A.   I'm referring to Water Management Services,

      24       Inc.'s, federal tax returns filed for the last six

      25       years.
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       1            Q.   And, and you are aware, of course, that for

       2       federal tax purposes, the federal government allows

       3       Water Management Services to utilize accelerated

       4       depreciation relative to that prescribed by the

       5       Commission in its Uniform System of Accounts.

       6            A.   Oh, absolutely.  There's a great deal of

       7       difference between the Commission rules and depreciation

       8       and all of that and the federal tax law.

       9            Q.   And --

      10            A.   We have to comply with both.

      11            Q.   Yes.  And in complying with the Commission's

      12       regulatory requirements, you prepare annual reports, do

      13       you not?

      14            A.   We do.  Every year.

      15            Q.   And those annual reports depict the financial

      16       situation of the company as it appears when conforming

      17       to the Uniform System of Accounts that this Commission

      18       prescribes; correct?

      19            A.   To the best of our ability they do.

      20                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I'm going to ask Tricia to

      21       hand out a document now.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Do we need an exhibit

      23       number for this?

      24                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  These will be Excerpts Water

      25       Management Services Annual Reports.

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                        98

       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  That is marked

       2       for identification as Exhibit 74.

       3                (Exhibit 74 marked for identification.)

       4                 MR. SAYLER:  Excuse me, Commissioner.  What

       5       exhibit number was that?

       6                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  74.  And, Mr. McGlothlin,

       7       can you give me another short title on that one, please?

       8       Usually it's on there.  Repeat that.

       9                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Excerpts Water Management

      10       Services Annual Report.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  All right.  Thank

      12       you.

      13                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Thank you.  I thought you

      14       meant you didn't like my first one and I was going to

      15       have to try again.

      16                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  No.  I just had -- the

      17       acoustics in the room aren't the best.  So you may

      18       proceed.

      19       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      20            Q.   Now within this package, Mr. Brown, there's a

      21       page that has a caption on the upper right-hand corner

      22       called, that says "Year of Report," with the date

      23       December 31st, 2005.  Do you see that?

      24            A.   Mine says seven.

      25            Q.   Well, further into the package.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  Two more pages.

       2                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.  2005.

       3       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

       4            Q.   And -- excuse me just a second.

       5                 Bear with me, Mr. Brown.  I'm going to send

       6       you back to 2007, the first page in the package.

       7            A.   Okay.

       8            Q.   Do you see at the bottom there's a caption

       9       called Net Utility Operating Income?

      10            A.   Yes, sir.

      11            Q.   And looking at the current year, which was

      12       2007 at the time, did Water Management Services report

      13       to the Commission that for that year it experienced a

      14       positive net operating income of $410,000?

      15            A.   Yes, it does.

      16            Q.   And --

      17            A.   Could I explain one part of that?

      18            Q.   Let me ask my questions first.

      19            A.   Okay.  Sure.

      20            Q.   And then you'll have that opportunity.

      21                 For the previous year, which would have been

      22       2006, did Water Management Services report to the

      23       Commission that it experienced a positive net operating

      24       income of $439,784?  And that's on the same page,

      25       Mr. Brown, just under the, another column marked
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       1       Previous Year at the top.

       2            A.   Okay.

       3            Q.   Does that indicate that for 2006 the Utility

       4       reported to the Commission a positive net operating

       5       income in the amount of $439,784?

       6            A.   We reported whatever this says.

       7            Q.   Okay.  Now if you'll turn the page to see the

       8       Year of Report, December 31st, 2009.

       9            A.   Okay.

      10            Q.   Do you have that?

      11            A.   All right.

      12            Q.   And looking first at the previous year, which

      13       would have been 2008, does that indicate that Water

      14       Management Services reported to the Commission that it

      15       experienced a net operating income positive in the

      16       amount of $107,567?

      17            A.   Yes, sir.

      18            Q.   And for the year 2009 does it indicate a loss

      19       or negative $23,496?

      20            A.   Yes, sir.

      21            Q.   Now you heard my exchange with Mr. Seidman

      22       when I asked him to agree with me that if the Commission

      23       were to exclude $80,000 of deferred compensation that

      24       is, was expensed in 2009, that would have the effect of

      25       sending this into positive territory.

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       101

       1            A.   I would take your word for it.  I haven't made

       2       those calculations.

       3            Q.   Okay.  Well, $80,000 is bigger than $23,000;

       4       correct?

       5            A.   80,000 is bigger than 23,000.  Yes, sir.

       6            Q.   Is it true that in 2009 Water Management

       7       Services expensed that $80,000, but the --

       8            A.   Yes.  That's true.

       9            Q.   But it is not a funded account; correct?

      10            A.   That's correct.

      11            Q.   Earlier today the Staff distributed what has

      12       been marked as Exhibit seventy -- was it one?

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  70.

      14       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      15            Q.   Seven zero.  A document captioned WMSI's

      16       Supplemental Response to OPC's Second Set of

      17       Interrogatories.  Yes.  We're going to hand you a copy

      18       for purposes of my next question or two.

      19                 If you will turn first to the first page after

      20       the cover sheet --

      21            A.   Okay.

      22            Q.   -- you will see Interrogatory 67 that OPC

      23       served on the Utility during the discovery phase of this

      24       case.  I'll give you a second just to read Interrogatory

      25       67, which continues on to the next page with
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       1       subparagraphs 2 and 3.

       2            A.   All right.

       3                (Pause.)

       4            Q.   Now this interrogatory sought information

       5       concerning what the Utility did after the Utility and

       6       the Office of Public Counsel entered a settlement

       7       agreement that was approved by the Commission, and that

       8       called for the Utility to perform certain improvements

       9       to loop areas of its system for purposes of increased

      10       fire flow; correct?

      11            A.   That's correct.

      12            Q.   And you'll see that Interrogatory 67 refers to

      13       orders that were issued in August 2004 and

      14       November 21st, 2005; correct?

      15            A.   I assume so.  Yes, sir.

      16            Q.   In response to that, the Utility provided us

      17       with, among other things, a page listing certain

      18       invoices from Boh Brothers; correct?

      19            A.   Yes, sir.

      20            Q.   And if the Commissioners would turn to that

      21       page, which is, shows a list of one, two, three, four,

      22       five, six invoices under Account 105.15, and the caption

      23       is Boh Brothers Contract for Water Main Improvements.

      24                 Would you agree with me, sir, that all of

      25       those invoices are for work performed between the months
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       1       of June 2003 and December 2003?

       2            A.   If you say so.  I mean, I haven't -- I don't

       3       have them here.

       4            Q.   Well, this is the document that was provided

       5       to us in response to our request for that information,

       6       is it not?  Are you familiar with it?

       7            A.   I'm -- yes, we've been providing material on

       8       this trying to document it.

       9            Q.   Well, if you'll agree that these invoices are,

      10       are dated -- do I understand correctly that when you

      11       receive such an invoice, it is for a charge in the

      12       Utility for work that has been done to that point?

      13            A.   Yes.  They have to be -- this was all handled

      14       by my engineer, whose initials are probably on there

      15       because he handled all this and approved the payment and

      16       sent me the invoice with his signature and I paid it.

      17            Q.   Well, if these invoices represent payment for

      18       work done up to and including the dates shown, doesn't

      19       it follow that these do not relate to the work that was

      20       to be done after 2004 as requested in our interrogatory?

      21            A.   These invoices would relate to work in '03, I

      22       believe.

      23            Q.   Yes, sir.  And I believe that's my point.

      24       Because if you'll return back to Interrogatory 67, does

      25       that not reflect that the settlement agreement pursuant
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       1       to which the looping projects were to be performed was

       2       not approved until calendar year 2004?

       3            A.   That's right.  We had already done a lot of

       4       the work before that date.

       5            Q.   Well, you had not done the work related to the

       6       settlement agreement prior to the approval of that

       7       settlement agreement, had you?

       8            A.   Oh, yes.  We had done most of it, I believe.

       9            Q.   Wasn't the settlement agreement reached by the

      10       Utility and OPC to resolve the dispute over whether

      11       $400,000 would be spent to replace the elevated storage

      12       tank?

      13            A.   Yes.  By the time it got all approved, a lot

      14       of this was done verbally, as I recall.  But as I said,

      15       Les Thomas handled this with Steve Reilly and Jay

      16       Abbott, and it was all documented and tested and we went

      17       through this back in those years.  We have not totally

      18       reconstructed it.  This just came up recently and we're

      19       trying to respond as best we can with limited staff.

      20                 But we put in right at 40,000 lineal feet of

      21       six- and eight-inch to improve fire flow.  It did

      22       improve fire flow.  And we got the fire flow up where

      23       all the insurance rates on the island were lowered, and

      24       it was approved by the Office of Public Counsel, by the

      25       fire department, everybody, and they signed off and gave
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       1       them the documents and we thought it was over.  But we

       2       have gone back and shown you where we put in right at

       3       40,000 lineal feet with all the appurtenances and valves

       4       and everything.

       5            Q.   I want to acknowledge that the Utility did

       6       provide OPC with a map marked to demonstrate or to

       7       indicate on the map where the looping improvements

       8       occurred.  My only point is that we also asked for the

       9       invoices that would demonstrate how much was, was spent

      10       and by whom, and it appeared to me based upon the fact

      11       that the dispute over the disposition of the elevated

      12       storage tank was not, did not occur until 2004, it

      13       occurs to me, it appears to me that these invoices may

      14       be, may not be the ones that relate to the, to the work

      15       on those --

      16            A.   I think most of them are.  As I told you this

      17       morning, there's probably some more in early '04.  We

      18       were trying to respond to your question, which put a

      19       figure of 400 and -- it had a specific figure that we

      20       were trying to tie to of $479,000 was in your figure,

      21       and that is the total that is reflected on the general

      22       ledger for '03 for these water lines.  So we were trying

      23       to respond to the question in documenting that $479,000.

      24                 Since you asked me this morning, I've looked

      25       at the '04 general ledger, and there is another $165,000

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       106

       1       on there or in the annual report for distribution lines.

       2       So probably it's a total of the 479,000 plus the 165.

       3       But this is not something we can just do as easily as

       4       you might think.  This was all gone over, audited by the

       5       federal government, DEP, PSC, everybody.  We documented

       6       it, we gave the final agreement, the final plans, and

       7       gave the map to the Office of Public Counsel, which I

       8       understand you can't find now and we can't either.  I

       9       didn't personally do it but our engineer did.

      10                 So, I mean, I hate for you to make it seem

      11       like there's something sinister or unknown about it.  It

      12       has been, what, six years ago, seven?

      13            Q.   My, my only point is that there appears to be

      14       a discrepancy between what was requested and the

      15       invoices that were provided.

      16            A.   Well, your question -- the interrogatory asked

      17       for us to document how we spent 479,000, it was right to

      18       the dollar, and we documented it as best we could.  And

      19       that ties to the general ledger, which is done with

      20       great detail in '03.  And we documented that, with

      21       Mr. Seidman's help, my accountant's help, and now we

      22       find there's also 165,000 we spent in '04.

      23                 I guess I'm trying to understand the problem.

      24       We put in 40,000 feet of fire protection with all the

      25       appurtenances.  We got the pressure up so that the
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       1       island committee looking into water pressure signed off

       2       on it and the insurance rates were lowered and everybody

       3       seemed to be happy.

       4                 But we've got an engineer here.  I don't, I

       5       don't think five, six hundred thousand is an exorbitant

       6       cost for 40,000 feet of eight- and six-inch line

       7       installed with all the appurtenances.

       8            Q.   You were here when Chief Abbott testified,

       9       were you not?

      10            A.   I was.

      11            Q.   In his remarks he said that he thought the

      12       improvements were, in his words, incomplete.  Can you

      13       respond to that?

      14            A.   I think Jay Abbott will always think that fire

      15       protection on this island is incomplete.  I mean, it's a

      16       work in process.  We, we have found ourself in this

      17       position of providing limited fire protection, but there

      18       is no set amount of plant that we're supposed to put in

      19       that I'm aware of.  He, he's demanding now that we put

      20       in a new pumping station down near the Cut and do a lot

      21       of other work.

      22                 We did go out for bid on this.  Blankenship

      23       bid 940 something thousand dollars to do this work,

      24       basically the work that we did, maybe with just a little

      25       bit more, and we ended up saving a lot of that money and
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       1       doing it for apparently five or six hundred thousand.

       2            Q.   I have several questions for you that relate

       3       to your tariff provisions and the manner in which the

       4       Utility inspects the premises of customers.

       5            A.   Right.

       6            Q.   Okay.  First I'll just give you a copy of some

       7       responses to our second set of interrogatories.

       8            A.   Okay.

       9                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. McGlothlin, is this

      10       handout an excerpt?  Will we need a number for it?

      11                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I believe we need a number

      12       for it.

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  That will be

      14       number 75.  A short title, please.

      15                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  WMSI Response to OPC First

      16       Set of PODs, Number 3.

      17                 (Exhibit 75 marked for identification.)

      18                (Pause.)

      19                 Commissioner, I misspoke.  This is a part of

      20       hearing Exhibit 35.  So in the interest of conservation,

      21       I can turn back that exhibit number.

      22                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Do we want to do

      23       that or do we just want to leave it as marked?

      24                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Either way.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Let's just leave it as
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       1       marked and proceed on.

       2       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

       3            Q.   Do you have that document before you,

       4       Mr. Brown?

       5            A.   Yes.  It doesn't have an exhibit number on it,

       6       but I have what was just handed.

       7            Q.   It's been marked as Exhibit 75.

       8            A.   Okay.

       9            Q.   And if you'll turn in the document to question

      10       76 regarding the operating procedures when an existing

      11       customer wishes to reconnect.

      12            A.   Okay.

      13            Q.   I'll give you a minute to look at that.

      14                 MS. SCOLES:  Joe, would you mind scooting up?

      15       I'm having a really hard time hearing.

      16                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Is this better?

      17                 MS. SCOLES:  Thank you.  Yes.

      18                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.  I've looked at that.

      19       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      20            Q.   And in that response you state that the

      21       Utility personnel performed an audit of the service

      22       location, both a bookkeeping audit and a site visit;

      23       correct?

      24            A.   Yes.  Whenever we have a request for service.

      25            Q.   And the purpose of the bookkeeping audit would
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       1       be to see if the customer owes money for, for

       2       nonpayment; correct?

       3            A.   That would be the main purpose.  And also to

       4       see, if they have been a customer, what their level of

       5       use was.

       6            Q.   Now with respect to a site visit, would you

       7       describe specifically what the service personnel do to

       8       conduct a site visit?

       9            A.   They go and physically inspect the property

      10       inside and out to see if there is a shallow well, see if

      11       there's a need for a cross-connection control device,

      12       and see what the use is, whether it's multifamily,

      13       single family, commercial, just what's going on there.

      14            Q.   Do we understand correctly that Water

      15       Management Services, Water Management Services will not

      16       install a meter until the customer allows Utility

      17       personnel access to the inside of the premises?

      18            A.   That is correct.

      19            Q.   And if you'll turn to OPC's Interrogatory 78

      20       within the same document.

      21            A.   Would you like me to explain why we don't do

      22       that or --

      23            Q.   No.  You've answered my question.

      24            A.   That's just yes or no.  Okay.

      25            Q.   Yes.
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       1            A.   I'll do that later.

       2            Q.   Now with respect to Interrogatory 78, you say

       3       that whenever there's a request for service, the Utility

       4       will perform an inspection of the premises inside and

       5       out to determine the type of use; correct?

       6            A.   Right.

       7                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I want to provide an exhibit

       8       which is entitled WMSI Current Water Tariff.  We'd like

       9       that one identified, please.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  That will be marked for

      11       identification as Exhibit 76.

      12                 (Exhibit 76 marked for identification.)

      13                 And, Mr. McGlothlin, can you repeat that short

      14       title, please?

      15                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Yes.  WMSI Current Water

      16       Tariff.

      17                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Thank you.

      18       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      19            Q.   If you will turn to page 7, which is shown on

      20       the bottom right-hand corner.

      21            A.   Okay.

      22            Q.   Do you recognize this as a copy of the

      23       Utility's current tariff, Mr. Brown?

      24            A.   It seems to be.  Yes, sir.

      25            Q.   And you'll see that on page 7 the entry of
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       1       5.0 defines the term point of delivery; correct?

       2            A.   Yes, sir.

       3            Q.   And that's the point where the company's pipes

       4       or meters are connected with pipes of the customer;

       5       correct?

       6            A.   Yes.

       7            Q.   Now if you'll turn to page 12 of 55 in the

       8       same document.  Do you see a Section 11.0 entitled

       9       Inspection of Customer's Installation?

      10            A.   Right.

      11            Q.   And take a moment to review that, if you wish.

      12            A.   Okay.

      13            Q.   Is it true that this section refers to water

      14       service installations or changes to the customers'

      15       piping, equipment and devices that shall be inspected?

      16            A.   It says, "Inspection of customer's

      17       installation."

      18            Q.   And near the end of Section 11 the tariff

      19       states, "The company has the right to inspect the

      20       customers's installation prior to rendering water

      21       service."  Correct?

      22            A.   Yes.

      23            Q.   Now one more reference which is on the next

      24       page, 13.

      25            A.   Okay.
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       1            Q.   And if you'll look at entry 13.0, Access to

       2       Premises.

       3            A.   Okay.

       4            Q.   Does that state the company shall have access

       5       at reasonable hours to the premises of the customer for

       6       the purpose of installing, maintaining and inspecting

       7       the Company's property?

       8            A.   Well, I haven't read it.  It says whatever it

       9       says.

      10            Q.   Well, would you agree that the inside of a

      11       home or business is beyond the point of delivery?

      12            A.   I would agree with that.  That's not where the

      13       water is delivered.  That's right.  It's not, not used

      14       at the meter.  It's used inside and outside the

      15       premises.

      16            Q.   If you'll turn now to page 28 of 55, and the

      17       caption is Sheet Number 24.

      18            A.   Okay.

      19            Q.   Do you recognize that as the application for

      20       water service for residential and general service?

      21            A.   Yes, sir.

      22            Q.   Is this application the same one that is used

      23       by the service personnel when a customer wishes to

      24       connect?

      25            A.   I don't think the service personnel, T. J. and
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       1       Bobby, handle these agreements.  They work off work

       2       orders.  Our Operations Manager handles the agreement

       3       and has the application filled out by the applicant, and

       4       then directs the service personnel what to do in

       5       response to that.

       6                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  We have one more document to

       7       distribute.

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Do we need to mark that

       9       for identification, Mr. McGlothlin?

      10                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Yes, please.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  That will be

      12       Exhibit Number 77 for ID.  And a brief short title.

      13                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Addendum to Application for

      14       Water Service.

      15                 (Exhibit 77 marked for identification.)

      16                 THE WITNESS:  Okay.

      17       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      18            Q.   Do you recognize -- well, first let me

      19       represent to you that we received this from one of the

      20       Utility's customers.  And our question is this:  Do you

      21       recognize this to be a copy of the application for water

      22       service, residential and general, to which has been

      23       added an additional page called Addendum?

      24            A.   Yes.

      25            Q.   Our question is simply this, Mr. Brown:  We
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       1       don't see within the Company's tariff any portion of the

       2       application that lines up with this particular page

       3       identified as Addendum.  Can you explain how and why the

       4       Company would be using this when it's not part of the

       5       tariff?

       6            A.   Yes.  There is a story behind this.  Is this

       7       the right time to explain all this?

       8            Q.   This is the right time.

       9            A.   Okay.  We've had a lot of problems on

      10       St. George Island with people converting uses.  We, for

      11       example, have over 100 multifamily structures in single

      12       family areas.  People tend to build these big

      13       McMansions, and they'll have literally six and eight

      14       bedrooms.  And then they come along and they file some

      15       condo documents and all of the sudden that's four or

      16       five condos.  And that doesn't seem fair or equitable to

      17       our other customers to let people put in condominium

      18       units on a single family property with a five-eighths

      19       meter with no notice to us.

      20                 So we gathered up a bunch of these and went

      21       over to the Commission and complained and said, "What do

      22       we do?"  And we, we took one, which was just a small

      23       third acre lot within a couple of blocks of here.  The

      24       people came in and got a residential connection, paid a

      25       service connection fee for a five-eighths meter, and
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       1       then they converted it to four condominium units and

       2       sold them.  So we went to the Commission, had -- it

       3       wasn't a hearing like this, but it was pretty formal.

       4       After all the investigation and all, we had a meeting

       5       with, and I see some of the staff here today, and our

       6       basic point was, "Can we collect more CIAC from these

       7       people?"  And the answer was, "No, because you did not

       8       properly inspect it.  You failed in your duty to

       9       determine what the uses were at the time."

      10                 So we've got 100 and something that we've

      11       documented multifamily structures who have paid

      12       five-eighths residential.  And in the letter, which I

      13       didn't bring with me today, but the staff member told us

      14       that this was our duty and pretty much directed us.  So

      15       from that point forward we have required and do require

      16       inspection to determine.

      17                 People tend to hide wells.  They don't want to

      18       pay three or four hundred dollars for a cross-connection

      19       device.  If they can, if they can go down in the

      20       Plantation, for example, and build a big McMansion and

      21       it's got six bedrooms and six bathrooms and they can put

      22       in a five-eighths meter and pay one single family tap

      23       and then they can just go file condominium documents and

      24       deed out six properties, we have no control over that.

      25                 So the staff pretty much directed us to --
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       1       they didn't say you've got to do this.  They said, "It's

       2       your duty."  And since then, by the way, we have found

       3       two or three -- I won't name names, but one of them was

       4       here in some of these meetings -- it looked like a

       5       single family house.  We looked at it.  It's three

       6       units.  And so we do require, we feel like we have, we

       7       have to know what's going on before we sell connections.

       8                 And maybe we should -- I don't know if this is

       9       the right time, but we probably should ask for an

      10       amendment to our tariff to include this because it's

      11       necessary information.

      12            Q.   You acknowledge that this particular page is

      13       not part of your tariff currently then?

      14            A.   It is not part of the tariff.  I think it is

      15       within the rules and it is within our rights to ask what

      16       are you going to do with this property?  We have to know

      17       that.  And people will not tell you everything.  If the

      18       connection fee might be $15,000 if they say one thing,

      19       but it's $1,500 if they don't let you inside to look,

      20       then sometimes they don't tell you everything you would

      21       find out if you inspect.

      22                 But this was the direction.  And we have the

      23       letter, if anybody would like to see it later.  But we

      24       were directed to, that this was our responsibility.

      25            Q.   Could you supply that letter to us as, as an
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       1       exhibit?

       2            A.   We could.

       3                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  Okay.  I'd like to have an

       4       exhibit number for that.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  That will be

       6       Exhibit Number 78.  And I believe that will be a

       7       late-filed, so if I could have a short title.

       8                (Late-Filed Exhibit 78 identified for the

       9       record.)

      10                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  I'll look to Mr. Brown for

      11       that.

      12       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

      13            Q.   Was this a letter from the Commission staff,

      14       is that -- or the County Commission?

      15            A.   No.  This was the Commission staff.  We had --

      16       this has been an ongoing problem and it just came to a

      17       head.  We took this one over there that seemed pretty

      18       clear-cut, and they ruled that we should have inspected

      19       it.  Of course we didn't know how we could know that

      20       because the condo -- and they deeded it out two years

      21       after we hooked it up, so I never could quite understand

      22       how we could have determined that.  But we're being

      23       pretty vigilant about it now.

      24                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Brown, on that

      25       late-filed exhibit, do you have a short title what that
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       1       letter may be called?

       2                 MS. SCOLES:  Chairman, could I suggest

       3       Commission Staff Letter to WMSI Regarding Inspections?

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

       5       Thank you.

       6                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Ms. Scoles -- excuse me.

       7       Ms. Scoles, do you know if that's something that you

       8       would be able to submit during the course of this

       9       hearing, or is that something that would need to be,

      10       realizing that we're out of town and all of that, would

      11       need to be late-filed after the conclusion of testimony?

      12                 MS. SCOLES:  We can certainly look at the

      13       Utility office here on the island, Commissioner, and try

      14       to get it before the hearing concludes.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  We can have it faxed down here,

      16       I mean, if we're going to be here a day or two.

      17                 MS. SCOLES:  We'll make every effort to do

      18       that, Commissioner.

      19                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  Thank you.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  Well, it's been

      21       marked for identification as Exhibit 78.  And if you can

      22       produce it prior to the close of the hearing, then it

      23       won't need to be late-filed.  But we'll address it at

      24       the appropriate time.

      25                 MS. SCOLES:  Okay.  Thank you, Chairman.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. McGlothlin, you may

       2       proceed.

       3       BY MR. McGLOTHLIN:

       4            Q.   Just a few more questions.

       5                 If you'll look back to the response to OPC's

       6       Interrogatory 78, which was provided earlier.

       7            A.   Okay.

       8            Q.   There's a reference to a $100 temporary

       9       service charge.  Do you see that?

      10            A.   Well, it doesn't say service charge.  What I'm

      11       reading in my answer says temporary meter.  It's a

      12       temporary meter.

      13            Q.   Okay.

      14            A.   Not temporary service charge.  It's not a

      15       service charge.  It's a temporary meter.

      16            Q.   Okay.  I'll accept your correction.  But

      17       apparently, if I understand correctly, on several

      18       occasions the Utility has charged $100 for a temporary

      19       meter for, for a limited time use; correct?

      20            A.   Several, four or less, that's correct.

      21            Q.   And as I understand it, that's an

      22       accommodation for real estate sales personnel?

      23            A.   It's a temporary meter for people who do not

      24       want to sign up and be permanent customers.  We give

      25       them a choice.  If you come in and you want service, we
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       1       have a procedure.  You can fill out the application, pay

       2       a deposit, sign it personally or corporately, and some

       3       people do that.  We had an appraiser in Tallahassee, for

       4       example, was in a few months ago and he signed up and he

       5       was a customer for a day, he appraised the house, made

       6       sure the water worked, and then he terminated.  Other

       7       people want temporary service, so we have provided

       8       temporary service to three or four people pursuant to

       9       the PSC rules.  There is a rule that authorizes

      10       temporary meters for actual cost, and that $100 is our

      11       estimate of actual cost.

      12            Q.   Would you agree with me that your current

      13       tariff does not contain an entry or item called

      14       temporary meter charge?

      15            A.   Yes, sir.  There are many things that are

      16       authorized by the PSC rules in Chapter 25 that aren't

      17       specified in our tariff.  Our tariff was designed about

      18       35 years ago.  But we feel like anything that's

      19       specifically authorized in the PSC rules, we should

      20       adhere to that, including temporary meters.  Some

      21       temporary meters we get thousands of dollars for; when

      22       these contractors get them and use them for a month or

      23       two and use a lot of water.

      24                 This was just an accommodation to home

      25       inspectors and realtors and people who need to inspect
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       1       the property, need temporary water service, so we give

       2       them a temporary meter, or they can become a customer

       3       temporarily.  And we've had both.

       4            Q.   You mentioned in one of your earlier answers

       5       that in addition to temporary meters, you do provide

       6       temporary service; is that correct?

       7            A.   A temporary meter implies temporary service.

       8       If we put in a meter, that is service.  A temporary

       9       meter is service until it's, until that service is

      10       terminated, at which time the meter is taken out.

      11            Q.   And if I understood you correctly, you did

      12       agree that the charge for a temporary meter or a charge

      13       for temporary service is not currently within your

      14       tariff.

      15            A.   No.  It's currently within the PSC rule that

      16       says we can charge for a temporary meter and we will

      17       charge our actual costs.

      18                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  All right.  That concludes my

      19       questioning for now.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr.

      21       McGlothlin.

      22                 Staff.

      23                 MR. SAYLER:  Yes, Commissioner, we have a

      24       short line of questioning for Witness Brown.  And I do

      25       have a handout that I'd like to pass out at this time
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       1       just to save a little time when I get to the questions.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Do we need a

       3       number for that?

       4                 MR. SAYLER:  Yes, we will.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  That'll be Exhibit 79.  A

       6       short title.

       7                (Exhibit 79 marked for identification.)

       8                 MR. SAYLER:  Excerpt from Various Annual

       9       Reports.  Some of the items in the -- just various

      10       annual -- or, excuse me.  Excerpt from 2009 Annual

      11       Report.

      12                 I do want to note that this particular exhibit

      13       contains an excerpt from something that's already in the

      14       record under Exhibit 30, and then also some MFRs.  But

      15       because I note that the annual report is not in the

      16       record, I wanted to just go ahead and enter this into

      17       the record so that we have it.

      18                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  All right.  It's

      19       marked as Exhibit 79 for identification.  You may

      20       proceed.

      21                 And just before you do, Linda, it's my

      22       understanding we're going to switch out court reporters

      23       about this time; is that correct?

      24                 THE COURT REPORTER:  She's not here yet.  I

      25       told her 3:00, so.
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       1                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  All right.  All

       2       right.  Very well.  Mr. Sayler, you may proceed.

       3                 MR. SAYLER:  Thank you, Commissioner.

       4                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       5       BY MR. SAYLER:

       6            Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Brown.  My name is Erik

       7       Sayler on behalf of Commission Staff.

       8                 If I ask a question that, or I mumble or

       9       something and you need me to reclarify, please let me

      10       know.

      11            A.   Okay.

      12            Q.   Earlier when Mr. Seidman was being

      13       cross-examined by my co-counsel, Mr. Jaeger, he was

      14       asking essentially for a late-filed exhibit.  But just

      15       probably to make it easier, do you remember when he was

      16       doing that?

      17            A.   Yes, I do.

      18            Q.   All right.  I will just walk you through those

      19       same questions so we can see if we can get that

      20       late-filed exhibit that Mr. Jaeger was looking for.  Or

      21       if you can generate it in the midst of the hearing today

      22       or tomorrow, then hopefully it can be submitted as an

      23       exhibit during the hearing.

      24            A.   Today or tomorrow?

      25            Q.   If it's possible to generate that exhibit
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       1       during the time of the hearing; otherwise, we would like

       2       to ask for it as a late-filed exhibit.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Sayler?

       4                 THE WITNESS:  Refresh my memory on --

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Hold on for a second,

       6       Mr. Brown.

       7                 Mr. Sayler, what -- we're going to need to

       8       mark that and get a short title for that exhibit number.

       9                 MR. SAYLER:  Okay.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  So that will be

      11       Exhibit 80.

      12                 MR. SAYLER:  80.

      13                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  And if you can give me a

      14       brief description, please, and that way Mr. Brown can be

      15       responsive to it.

      16                 MR. SAYLER:  Yes.  Late-filed exhibit that

      17       shows what comprises the roughly $3.8 million listed in

      18       response to Interrogatory 75.  So --

      19                 THE WITNESS:  Well, that won't happen today or

      20       tomorrow.

      21                 MR. SAYLER:  Okay.

      22                 THE WITNESS:  That's -- you're talking about a

      23       complete audit from many years.  That's a very

      24       complicated issue as I understand it.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Ms. Helton,
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       1       how do we want to proceed with respect to the, what

       2       Staff is seeking to obtain?

       3                 THE WITNESS:  And we don't have the personnel

       4       to do that.  We do have a CPA or we can hire one to do

       5       it, but we certainly can't do it without a complete

       6       audit.

       7                 MS. HELTON:  Mr. Chairman, maybe we can take

       8       about a five-minute break, and the staff and OPC and the

       9       company can get together and we can figure out, maybe we

      10       can all better understand then what it is we're talking

      11       about.  And then we'll come back on the record, if

      12       that's okay with you, and have a, hopefully a

      13       resolution.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      15       We'll take a five-minute recess and reconvene at the

      16       appropriate time.  Thank you.

      17                 (Recess taken.)

      18                 All right.  We're going to go back on the

      19       record at this time.  And, Staff, where we left off is

      20       we were talking about an exhibit that's been marked for

      21       identification as Exhibit 80.  And if Staff could add a

      22       little bit of clarification to that exhibit or how we

      23       need to proceed.

      24                 MR. SAYLER:  Commissioner Skop, Chairman Skop,

      25       at this time Staff will not ask for that late-filed
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       1       exhibit.  It's really dependent upon a line of questions

       2       that I'll be asking Mr. Brown.  And depending upon the

       3       answers for those questions, then I may have to ask for

       4       that late-filed exhibit.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.

       6                 MR. SAYLER:  So I don't know if we can reserve

       7       that number or --

       8                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  We'll just, we'll proceed,

       9       we'll proceed forward without it being a placeholder.

      10       We'll just go next in order for the next exhibit, and at

      11       the time, if the need arises, we'll assign it the

      12       appropriate number.  And as a forward-looking basis, if

      13       Staff could get the short title so we know what we're

      14       asking for, I think that'll facilitate moving forward.

      15       So you may proceed.

      16                 MR. SAYLER:  Absolutely.

      17       BY MR. SAYLER:

      18            Q.   Mr. Brown?

      19            A.   Yes, sir.

      20            Q.   My name is Erik Sayler.  And the first part of

      21       my questioning is this, and this is actually on a

      22       different line of questions for now.

      23            A.   Okay.

      24            Q.   On page 10 of your, your direct testimony, if

      25       you'll turn to that for me, please.
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       1            A.   Okay.

       2            Q.   Specifically lines 15 through 18.

       3            A.   Okay.

       4            Q.   All right.  Would you agree that in your

       5       testimony you're requesting a 75 percent BFC allocation;

       6       is that correct?

       7            A.   That is correct.

       8            Q.   All right.  And would it be your testimony

       9       that under the current BFC allocation of 50 percent that

      10       you were not able to cover your fixed costs during the

      11       off season; is that correct?

      12            A.   That is correct.

      13            Q.   All right.  And the purpose of requesting the

      14       75 percent BFC allocation is to help ensure that the

      15       Utility is able to cover its costs during the off

      16       season; is that correct?

      17            A.   Well, that's one reason.  Probably a more

      18       important reason is we, we're trying to be more fair and

      19       equitable to all our customers, especially those who

      20       elect to stay on the system.  And the way it is now,

      21       they'd be encouraged to just go out and spend $100 and

      22       put in a shallow well for either potable or nonpotable

      23       water and use that; whereas, if we go to a 75 percent,

      24       75 BFP, then there's an encouragement built into that to

      25       stay on the system, and it'll spread the cost like for
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       1       fire protection and all the other things.  Right now

       2       we're providing fire protection for people who are not

       3       even customers.  There are houses are on the island that

       4       seems like we're backing up the -- with just shallow

       5       wells and septic tanks but don't use ours.  So we're

       6       just trying to spread it out.  So it's a combination of

       7       all those things.

       8            Q.   All right.  Thank you.  But getting back to my

       9       original question, isn't it true that the purpose of

      10       requesting the 75 percent BFC allocation is to help

      11       ensure that the Utility is able to cover its fixed

      12       costs, its fixed costs during the off season?

      13            A.   That is one of the reasons.  That is not the

      14       only reason.

      15            Q.   All right.  Thank you.  Moving along, if you

      16       will turn, refer to the handout, which was marked as,

      17       for identification as 79.  The Excerpt from the Annual

      18       Reports is the short title.

      19                 I will note that the first couple of pages

      20       pertain to interrogatory requests which are already in

      21       the record.

      22            A.   Okay.

      23            Q.   And are you familiar with these interrogatory

      24       responses submitted by the Utility, numbers 71 through

      25       76?
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       1            A.   Yes.  All 100 or 200 or 300.  I'm generally

       2       familiar with all of them.

       3            Q.   All right.  And these interrogatories were

       4       prepared under your -- by you or under your supervision;

       5       correct?

       6            A.   Yes.

       7            Q.   And has anything changed since these

       8       interrogatory responses were prepared?

       9            A.   Well, some things have changed, but --

      10            Q.   Anything that would change that would affect

      11       your response to these questions?

      12            A.   Not that comes to mind, but you'd have to

      13       refer me to a specific question.

      14            Q.   All right.  How about question 71?

      15            A.   Well, those balances on debt have probably

      16       changed a little bit but not substantially.

      17            Q.   All right.  For the record, Staff asked that

      18       you provide a list of debt issues that would be paid off

      19       with the proposed $5 million loan from Citizens State

      20       Bank; is that correct?

      21            A.   That's correct.

      22            Q.   And here you listed a number of debt

      23       obligations that the Utility was proposing to pay off

      24       that totaled roughly 2.8 million; is that correct?

      25            A.   That's correct.
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       1            Q.   And am I correct that this lists all the

       2       current Utility debt obligations with the exception of

       3       the loan that the Department of Environmental Protection

       4       provided for the new bridge water main; is that correct?

       5            A.   That's basically correct.  I don't know of any

       6       new debt that's not on here.  I can't think of any right

       7       now.

       8            Q.   Okay.  So once all the debt issues are being

       9       paid off by the $5 million loan from the Citizens State

      10       Bank, then WMSI will just have two debt issues

      11       outstanding, the Citizens Bank loan and the DEP loan; is

      12       that correct?

      13            A.   That is correct.

      14            Q.   All right.  And the $5 million loan or line of

      15       credit from Citizens State Bank is conditional; is that

      16       correct?

      17            A.   Yes.

      18            Q.   All right.  And to fund the supply main that

      19       runs along the St. George Island bridge, WMSI did

      20       receive a loan from the DEP.  And that was a guaranteed

      21       loan; is that correct?

      22            A.   It was guaranteed by me.

      23            Q.   Okay.  Well, let me rephrase my question, and

      24       I apologize for being a little repetitive.  You received

      25       a loan from DEP for the water main.
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       1            A.   The water main I ended up spending $7,009,000

       2       on.  I received a $6 million loan.  That's correct.

       3            Q.   Okay.  And, in your opinion, is the supply

       4       main that runs along the St. George Island bridge

       5       100 percent used and useful?

       6            A.   Yes, sir.  Absolutely.

       7            Q.   Were the proceeds from, the proceeds from the

       8       DEP loan used to fund sole, or fund just the supply main

       9       that runs along the St. George Island bridge; is that

      10       correct?

      11            A.   No.  The proceeds were used to fund the

      12       40,000 feet of 6- and 8-inch fire protection

      13       improvements, some improvements of the plant.  There was

      14       about -- we went out for bid, and, and then we did it

      15       ourself more or less and saved $900,000 and spent it on

      16       this other stuff.  But it was, it was used for either

      17       the supply main or other improvements to the water

      18       system.

      19            Q.   So are you -- is it your testimony today that

      20       proceeds from the DEP loan were used to fund or pay for

      21       activities other than the supply main; is that correct?

      22            A.   That is correct.

      23                 MR. SAYLER:  One moment.  If you'll permit me,

      24       I need to confer with Staff.

      25                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.
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       1                (Pause.)

       2                 MR. SAYLER:  Thank you for your indulgence.

       3                 With those responses, we don't need to seek a

       4       late-filed exhibit that we had discussed earlier.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

       6       Any additional questions?

       7                 MR. SAYLER:  I have three last questions.

       8       BY MR. SAYLER:

       9            Q.   If you will look at the exhibit that I handed

      10       to you, the last couple of pages, there's a page

      11       specifically entitled F-1(A) and F-9.  Please let me

      12       know when you're there.  I hand numbered them 7 and 8 on

      13       the bottom right-hand corner.

      14                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  It's the last two pages.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Is that it?

      16                 MR. SAYLER:  If you look on the bottom center,

      17       it says F-1(A) and then the last page is F --

      18                 COMMISSIONER EDGAR:  The last two pages,

      19       Mr. Brown, of that I think will get you there.

      20                 THE WITNESS:  F-1(A).  Okay.

      21       BY MR. SAYLER:

      22            Q.   All right.  And this is an excerpt from your

      23       annual report dated December 31st, 2009; is that

      24       correct?

      25            A.   That's correct.
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       1            Q.   All right.  If you will look on that, there is

       2       something listed as net non-utility property in the

       3       amount of $811,018.  Do you see that?

       4            A.   Right.

       5            Q.   If you will turn to page, the next page, F-9,

       6       you have Non-Utility Property Account 121.  Do you see

       7       that?

       8            A.   Yes.

       9            Q.   All right.  Under the description for that you

      10       have something called, quote, disallowed investment in

      11       plant, unquote, in the amount of $858,173.  Do you see

      12       that?

      13            A.   Yes, sir.

      14            Q.   And that corresponds to the amount on the

      15       prior page because that's, the 811,000 is that amount

      16       just less accumulated depreciation amortization; is that

      17       correct?

      18            A.   811.  Yes, sir.

      19            Q.   All right.  The question that staff has is can

      20       you explain what you mean by or what the annual report

      21       means by disallowed investment in plant?  What does that

      22       amount represent?

      23            A.   This was money that we spent on plant that we

      24       documented we spent, but there was a disagreement about

      25       it in one of the earlier cases.  We only had two cases,
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       1       one in '89 and one in '94.  And I think it was the first

       2       one where they disallowed a lot of the plant that we had

       3       in the ground.

       4            Q.   Do you know to what plant that is specifically

       5       referring?

       6            A.   It was mainly the distribution system.  There

       7       was an issue about whether it should be allowed or not.

       8       And I can't tell you whether this includes the non used

       9       and useful part.  I don't think it does.

      10                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Sayler, I have a

      11       follow-up question.

      12                 Mr. Brown, with respect to that disallowed

      13       investment in plant, you mentioned that it was part of

      14       the distribution system.  Is that actual physical assets

      15       that was disallowed in the cases that you alluded to, or

      16       would that be like a positive acquisition adjustment

      17       that was disallowed?

      18                 THE WITNESS:  There was no acquisition

      19       adjustment.  We built it up.  But we had, we had booked

      20       and spent the money we thought or we knew we did, we

      21       documented it.  But at the end of the case the

      22       Commission determined that it should be something less,

      23       so we've always carried that as disallowed plant.  I

      24       mean, for tax reasons and other reasons it has to be

      25       carried on our books, but we don't get a return and
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       1       don't report it as part of rate base.

       2                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

       3                 Mr. Sayler, you may proceed.

       4       BY MR. SAYLER:

       5            Q.   All right.  My last request would be Staff

       6       would like to have a late-filed exhibit just detailing

       7       what exactly that disallowed investment in plant is.

       8            A.   We can do that.  We can go back and look at

       9       the order.

      10                 MR. SAYLER:  All right.

      11                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Mr. Sayler, that will be

      12       Exhibit Number 80, and if you have a brief title.

      13                 MR. SAYLER:  Disallowed Investment in Plant.

      14       How does that sound?

      15                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Okay.  All right.

      16                (Late-Filed Exhibit 80 identified for the

      17       record.)

      18                 MR. SAYLER:  And with that, staff has no

      19       further questions.  Thank you for your time.

      20                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Very well.

      21       Thank you.

      22                 Ms. Scoles, you're recognized for redirect.

      23                 MS. SCOLES:  Thank you, Chairman.

      24                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

      25       BY MS. SCOLES:

                              FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       137

       1            Q.   Mr. Brown, will you take Exhibit Number 76,

       2       which the Office of Public Counsel passed to you

       3       earlier?

       4                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Ms. Scoles, can I, can I

       5       interrupt just for -- Commissioner Graham has a

       6       question.  And, I'm sorry, I should have looked to the

       7       bench, so I apologize.

       8                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  That's all right.  I

       9       have two quick questions, if I may.

      10                 Mr. Brown, how are you today?

      11                 THE WITNESS:  Fine.  How are you, Mr. Graham?

      12                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  You talked about the

      13       fire flow, the improvement and the impact it had here on

      14       the, on the island.

      15                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

      16                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  And how it improved

      17       their insurance rating.

      18                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

      19                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  Do you have any idea how

      20       much money was saved, you know, through property

      21       insurance?

      22                 THE WITNESS:  Since that time, probably

      23       hundreds of thousands of dollars.  We have a report that

      24       details that.  There was an actual committee formed on

      25       the island, and they had inspectors come in from the
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       1       Insurance Institute to inspect.  And they rated the fire

       2       department, they rated us, they rated everything, and

       3       we've been working on it since then.  But, but it

       4       satisfied everybody back then enough to get the rates

       5       down.

       6                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  So we have some pretty

       7       hard numbers on that?

       8                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

       9                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  Okay.  One other

      10       question I had.  You were talking about the, the water

      11       main going into the house.  If you have a water main

      12       going into a single family home, your responsibility for

      13       the most part ends at that water main.  Everything down

      14       line of that water main, if it were to fail or to leak,

      15       it would be the responsibility of the homeowner;

      16       correct?

      17                 THE WITNESS:  Theoretically.  But on

      18       St. George Island a lot of times they --

      19                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  Well, now if you, if you

      20       find out that that water main has been split and they're

      21       feeding four other condos, like you were saying before,

      22       in that case does your responsibility go to wherever

      23       down line it pipes into the individual condo or does

      24       your responsibility still end at that first initial

      25       main?
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       1                 THE WITNESS:  Our responsibility is to furnish

       2       water to that entire structure.  But our problem is when

       3       they subdivide it into these various ownerships, it

       4       really complicates things.  I, I notice here, for

       5       example, Mason Bean's name on one of these things faxed

       6       to Public Counsel.  Yeah.  This thing from Mason Bean,

       7       for example, he didn't want to let us look at his, but

       8       we looked at it and found out that he had three

       9       apartments.  You ride by it, it's always been a single

      10       family house.  But that -- there's a hundred and

      11       something of those.  And we had an argument with him,

      12       and it's just an ongoing problem.

      13                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  I'm just kind of

      14       curious, and this is more of a curiosity question, if

      15       that means your responsibility goes in further past that

      16       first meter or do you, does everything still stop at

      17       that first meter even though it's split inside?

      18                 THE WITNESS:  Well, there's, there's only one

      19       meter, you understand.  There's a five-eighths meter,

      20       which was a great big house.  And then to avoid paying

      21       us CIAC, they just let one person, like Perryman

      22       (phonetic) on this particular case that we dealt with,

      23       we were trying to make a test case of, she said, "Well,

      24       I'll just continue."  She signed up for a single family

      25       house and then she just distributed the bill.  We'd send
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       1       her a bill for $20, let's say, and she would collect

       2       $5 from each of the owners.  And these were actual

       3       separate legal owners.  I mean, they had tax records,

       4       they owned the property.

       5                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  Well, no.  I guess my

       6       question is if you were looking to collect more money

       7       from that household, does that mean that they get more

       8       from you?  Is there, you know --

       9                 THE WITNESS:  They don't, they don't -- they

      10       would still get the same water.  We wanted them to put

      11       in individual meters and be individual customers, but we

      12       were not able to do that.  And we were told by Staff

      13       that that's your responsibility.  At the time of

      14       connection you should have known, you should have gone

      15       and looked and found out that that was four separate

      16       units.  And the only way to do that is to actually look.

      17                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  So what is your recourse

      18       now if somebody goes in and splits up a single family

      19       home?  Is there any recourse for you?

      20                 THE WITNESS:  We have no recourse.  We've,

      21       we've got, we've got over a hundred of those on single

      22       family lots on St. George Island.  And, you know, it's

      23       just a good way to make money, I guess, if you can put

      24       up a great big house and design it.  We've got a house

      25       down here with eight bedrooms that looks like a motel,
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       1       but we've signed up a single family connection.  And

       2       according to Staff, it's our responsibility at the point

       3       of hookup.  That's the last chance we have.  I mean, I

       4       think Mr. McGlothlin is probably right; we can't just go

       5       in willy-nilly and start inspecting houses.

       6                 But at the point that there is no customer,

       7       before they get water, we do have the right, I believe,

       8       and we've been instructed it's our responsibility to

       9       determine what the uses are.  At that point we have to

      10       look at it.

      11                 COMMISSIONER GRAHAM:  Okay.  Thanks.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Thank you.

      13                 Ms. Scoles, you're recognized for redirect.

      14                 MS. SCOLES:  Thank you, Chairman.

      15       BY MS. SCOLES:

      16            Q.   Mr. Brown, if you would refer to Exhibit

      17       Number 76.  This is your current water tariff.

      18            A.   Okay.

      19            Q.   Turn to page 11, which is sheet number 9.0.

      20            A.   Okay.

      21            Q.   Do you have that?

      22            A.   I do.

      23            Q.   Would you just read that first sentence of

      24       paragraph 7.0, Limitation of Use?

      25            A.   "Limitation of Use.  Water service purchased
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       1       from the company shall be used by the customer only for

       2       the purposes specified in the application for water

       3       service, and the customer shall not sell or otherwise

       4       dispose of such water service supplied by the company."

       5            Q.   What does that mean, Mr. Brown?

       6            A.   Well, it should mean, we've argued that it

       7       means, and I hesitate because we've been told it doesn't

       8       apply in our situation, that they shouldn't be able to

       9       collect money and skirt this rule by just collecting

      10       from all the other owners in a condo development that is

      11       put in without our knowledge and after we sign up a

      12       single family residential use.

      13                 And there are, as I said earlier, there are a

      14       couple of administrative rules, PSC rules, we call them,

      15       that apply in this situation too that allow us to do

      16       temporary meters and such.

      17            Q.   Mr. Brown, you're going to be handed an order.

      18       This is not an exhibit to be entered, Chairman, but I

      19       would like Mr. Brown to take a look at it.

      20                 You were speaking earlier with the Office of

      21       Public Counsel about some work regarding the fire

      22       protection on the island back in 2003.  Do you remember

      23       that conversation, Mr. Brown?

      24            A.   Yes.

      25            Q.   Would you turn to the first page of that order
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       1       and read for us the date and the PSC Order Number,

       2       please?

       3            A.   The order number is PSC-04-0791-ASWU, and it's

       4       issued August 12, '04.

       5            Q.   Okay.  If you'll turn to page 8 of that order.

       6       Would you read the paragraphs 2 and 3 that are

       7       highlighted there, please?

       8            A.   "Order Number PSC-03-1005-PAA-WU had already

       9       authorized the company to expend some funds to improve

      10       the water distribution system by looping the mains that

      11       serve the length of the long narrow service territory.

      12       The company has been utilizing its own personnel and

      13       equipment to install these mains."

      14            Q.   Okay.  And then paragraph 3.

      15            A.   Has been using.

      16            Q.   Paragraph 3 also.

      17            A.   "The company shall expend the approximately

      18       $400,000 that would have spent replacing the company's

      19       elevated tank to complete the looping of the water mains

      20       that serve the service territory from Bob Sikes Cut to

      21       the State Park."

      22            Q.   So is it your understanding that this order

      23       directed for you to complete the work that had already

      24       been done, already been started in 2003?

      25            A.   That's my recollection, that we had been doing
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       1       work, and there was a question about this final

       2       $400,000, and we were authorized to spend that as well.

       3            Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Will you turn the page now,

       4       Mr. Brown, page 9.

       5            A.   Page 9 of this order?

       6            Q.   Yes, sir.  It should be the very next page.

       7            A.   Okay.

       8            Q.   Would you read the top paragraph?  What's the

       9       paragraph number there?  Is it 4?

      10            A.   Four.

      11            Q.   Would you read that for us, please?

      12            A.   "Upon completion of the above improvements to

      13       the distribution system, Water Management Service --

      14       Water Management shall furnish two complete sets of

      15       as-built drawings of the company's water distribution

      16       system to OPC.  One copy shall be retained at OPC's

      17       office and the second shall be retained by the customers

      18       at the fire station on St. George Island."

      19            Q.   Did the Utility provide that information as

      20       directed by the Commission?

      21            A.   Yes, we did.

      22                 MS. SCOLES:  Nothing further, Chairman.

      23                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Thank you,

      24       Ms. Scoles.

      25                 We'll take up exhibits at this time, if
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       1       there's no further questions.

       2                 MR. McGLOTHLIN:  OPC moves 74, 75, 76 and 77.

       3                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Any objection?

       4                 MS. SCOLES:  No objection.

       5                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Hearing none,

       6       Exhibits 74, 75, 76 and 77 will be entered.

       7                (Exhibits 74, 75, 76 and 77 admitted into the

       8       record.)

       9                And Staff?

      10                 MR. SAYLER:  Commissioner, Staff would move

      11       Exhibit 79, the excerpt from the 2009 annual report.

      12                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  Any objection?

      13                 MS. SCOLES:  No.

      14                 COMMISSIONER SKOP:  All right.  Hearing none,

      15       79 will be entered into the record.

      16                 (Exhibit 79 admitted into the record.)

      17                 And outstanding exhibits that we'll have to

      18       deal with at some point will be 71, 78 and 80 at the

      19       appropriate time.

      20                 Okay.  Mr. Brown, you may step down.  We'll

      21       see you on rebuttal.  And at this point, Commissioners,

      22       we're going to take a brief break to change out the

      23       court reporters.  So we'll take ten and come back on the

      24       record.

      25                 (Recess taken.)
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